
 
 
 

Power & Water Resources Pooling 
Authority 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
Board of Directors 
 
9:00 A.M. 
Wednesday, October 4, 2023 
 
 
 

 



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING AND AGENDA 
 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Power and Water Resources 
Pooling Authority (PWRPA) will be held on October 4, 2023, at 9:00 a.m., at the Cawelo Water District, 
17207 Industrial Farm Rd., Bakersfield, CA 93308, and by simultaneous teleconference at the following 
locations: 
 

Byron Bethany Irrigation District  
7995 Bruns Rd, Byron, CA 94514 
 

Glenn Colusa Irrigation District 
344 E. Laurel St., Willows, CA 95988 

 

James Irrigation District 
8749 Ninth Street, San Joaquin, CA 93660 

Reclamation District 108  
975 Wilson Bend Road, Grimes, CA 95950  

 

 
Lower Tule River Irrigation District 
357 E. Olive Ave./Ave. 152, Tipton, CA 93272 

 
Santa Clara Valley Water District 
5750 Almaden Expressway, San Jose, CA  95118 

 

 
Princeton-Cordora-Glenn ID/ Provident ID 
252 Commercial Street, Princeton, CA 95970 

 
Sonoma County Water Agency 
404 Aviation Blvd., Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

 
West Stanislaus Irrigation District 
116 E. St., Westley, CA 95387 

 
Westlands Water District 
3130 North Fresno St., Fresno, CA 93703  

 

  

Zone 7 Water Agency 
100 N. Canyons Pkwy, Livermore, CA 94551 

 

 

Accessible Public Meetings - PWRPA shall resolve requests for reasonable modification or accommodation 
from individuals with disabilities, consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Requests should be 
sent as soon as practicable via email to the attention of: ADA Request pep@cameron-daniel.com 

Regular Agenda (all items below may include possible action, times are approximations) 
 

1 Chair Roll Call of all Directors participating 

2 Chair Matters Subsequent to Posting the Agenda 

3 Chair Public Comment – During Agenda Item 3, any member of the public may address 
the Board concerning any matter on the agenda.  

4 Chair 

2 Min 

Consent Agenda  

A. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held on August 2, 2023. 

B. P3 Request: SCVWD energy efficiency upgrade. 

C. Cap & Trade Request: SCVWD renewable resource procurement.  

5 TR GM OM 

60 Min 

 

A. Treasurer’s Report - Approval of Ordering Payments of Accounts and Claims; 
acceptance of the Treasurer’s Report and other items related to Treasurer’s 
duties.  

B. 2024 Budget first look. 

C. Rate matters including REC transfer proposal; Consider and possibly approve 
Resolution 23-10-13 Rate Review and Adjustment. 

6 GM OM 

20 Min 

 

A. GM Report – 2024 training and collaboration sessions.  

B. OM Report – Ops highlights; CEC Demand Side Grid Support Program.  

C. Consider and possibly approve Resolution 23-10-14 2022 Power Content Label. 

D. Consider and possibly approve Resolution 23-10-15 Meeting Dates for 2024. 

mailto:pep@cameron-daniel.com


 

 2 

7 GM OM 

20 Min 

Special Projects  

A. Project opportunity: Rock Valley Solar and Storage. 

B. Update: Lower Tule River Success Hydro; Luna Valley Solar (Westlands Water 
District); BCID LLC Solar (BCID); other projects in considertation. 

8 SC GC 

10:30 AM 

15 Min 

Closed Session 

A. Conference with legal counsel – Existing litigation: PG&E WDT3 Rate Case, 
FERC ER22-619, ER20-2878 consolidated. Pursuant to Gov’t Code section 
54956.9(d)(1). 

9 Chair Board Matters – Other announcements. 

 Chair Adjournment - Next Regular Meeting is Wednesday, December 6, 2023, at 9:00 
A.M.   

 



 

Power & Water Resources Pooling 
Authority 
 

Consent Agenda • Item 4 
 

1. Minutes of the August 2, 2023, meeting.  
 

2. SCVWD P3 Funding Request. 
 

3. SCVWD Cap & Trade Funding Request. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 

      



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES AUGUST 2, 2023 
 
 

1 Chair  
Directors and Alternates Present: Dave Nixon (AEWSD), Dave Weisenberger 
(BCID), Ed Pattison (BBID), Dave Ansolabehere (CWD), Louis Jarvis (GCID), John 
Michael Domondon (LTRID), Lance Boyd (PPID), Jordan Navarott (RD 108), John 
Brosnan (SCVWD), Dale Roberts (SCWA), Bobby Pierce (WSID), Kiti Campbell 
(WWD), Sal Segura (Z7), James Carney (Zone 7). 
 
Also participating: Bruce McLaughlin (GM), Cori Bradley (OM), Jennifer Montoya 
(WWD). 
 

2 Chair Matters Subsequent to Posting the Agenda - None 

3 Chair Public Comment – Ed Pattison requested that the Board use the designation  “Byron 
Bethany Irrigation District” throughout the packet and in reports. Ms. Bradley stated 
that her staff is already in the process of changing all their systems to BBID. 

4 Chair 

 

Consent Agenda  

A. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held on June 5, 2023. 

B. P3 funds requests for 2019 and later tranches: AEWSD, BBID, CWD, JID, PPID, 
RD 108, SCWA. 

Bobby Pierce moved, Sal Segura seconded, and participating Directors unanimously 
approved the Consent Agenda. 

Voting Shares: 96% Yes / 0% No / 4% Absent (JID) 

5 TR GM 
OM 

 

 

A. Treasurer’s Report - Approval of Ordering Payments of Accounts and Claims; 
acceptance of the Treasurer’s Report and other items related to Treasurer’s duties.  

Mr. Nixon presented the disbursement list and noted that the interest rates went up 
this month which he said will be reflected in the reconciliation. Mr. Nixon stated 
that due to the wet year, PWRPA has a much lower requirement for the CAISO 
reserve fund. 

Jordan Navarrot moved, Dave Ansolabehere seconded, and participating Directors 
unanimously approved the Treasurer’s Report. 

Voting Shares: 96% Yes / 0% No / 4% Absent (JID) 

B. Consider and possibly approve Resolution 23-08-11 2022 Annual Reconciliation.  

Mr. Nixon and Ms. Bradley reviewed the 2022 Reconcilliation explaining that the 
Board has 60 days to review it and make any corrections. Mr. Nixon reviewed the 
various accounts and stated that he will be sending invoices or reimbursements to 
the districts as applicable. 

Mr. Nixon stated that districts with funds on deposit can ask for the money back at 
any time. When asked if the PWRPA reserve fund has to remain at current levels, 
Mr. Nixon stated that it was originally raised to cover requirements during dry 
years. He noted that PWRPA invoices participants after the fact so that they can 
utilize their reserve. He said the reserve needs to stay at current levels. Jordan 
Navarott asked if the reserve is based on a 5 year average and Ms. Bradley said it 
is.  

Ms. Bradley discussed power costs for 2022 pointing out the list of Appendices in 
the report as the guide for finding details of particular items for the year. Ms. 



 

 2 

Bradley stated that in 2022 the load estimates were reasonably accurate, and 
though the overhead estimates were increased in anticipation of WDT2, not all 
overhead monies were used. Ms. Bradley stated that 2021 was a difficult Base 
Resource (BR) year followed by 2022 in which PWRPA received half of the 2021 
BR levels. At the time BR cost $98 in 2022 whereas the 2023 rate is currently $30.  
Ms. Bradley stated that PWRPA did not buy any supplemental power due to its 
high cost and noted as an example, that power prices ranged from $100 to $175 
during June and July. Ms. Bradley stated that Slate became fully operational in 
March and has since performed well for PWRPA. Lodi, however, only ran at 51% 
due to a 4 month outage for the 10-year major maintenance, as well as parts 
problems.   

She reviewed the performance of each of PWRPA’s resources and stated that 
members should add the value of RECs received for any resource, to the monies 
received for power it produced. 

Jordan Navarott asked why revenue varied for each of PWRPA’s resource. Ms. 
Bradley answered that the location on the grid along with the time of day the 
resource is online affects revenue, and noted that BR made the most money 
because PWRPA uses it during the peak grid hours. Ms. Bradley stated that she 
broke out the Slate value from the Battery value and found that the solar alone 
brought in $48 of value. She said PWRPA received $531,000 of value from the 
ISO that is specifically attributable to the battery because PWRPA was able to 
release during peak hours. Additionally the battery provided RECs during the 
periods of negative pricing. Ms. Bradley stated that Lodi was a net cost to PWRPA 
of $18. Sal Segura requested that Ms. Bradley’s team create a weighted average 
chart showing the value of each resource.   

Ms. Bradley detailed the district summaries which will be sent to each district. The 
summaries show average usage, energy data, a summary of the budget, a 
summary of costs and each district’s share of the various resources. Ms. Bradley 
encouraged anyone who would like to have further explanation to call her. Mr. 
McLaughlin reiterated that the districts should review the reconciliation and if they 
find an error, bring it to Ms. Bradley’s attention. He also noted that the districts 
need to contact Mr. Nixon to inform him how they want to pay their bills or be 
reimbursed. 

Dave Ansolabehere moved, Sal Segura seconded, and participating Directors 
unanimously approved the Resolution 23-08-11 to adopt the 2022 Reconciliation 
numbers. 

Voting Shares: 96% Yes / 0% No / 4% Absent (JID) 

 

C. Rate matters including carbon-free transfer proposal, REC transfer proposal, 2024 
budget issues; if applicable, consider and possibly approve Resolution 23-08-XX 
Rate Review and Adjustment. 

Ms. Bradley stated that there is some significant overfunding and that her team 
kept the summer prices high to allow for some flexibility. She said there is money 
sitting in contingency which will help underfunded districts pay their bills. She 
stated that she will make a better estimate of the potential reserve requirement for 
the districts and add that into their requirement for next year.  

Mr. McLaughlin spoke about the BR attribute stating that it is transferred to districts 
within PWRPA that select the Zero Carbon portfolio. He noted that the BR attribute 
has no value outside of PWRPA, only within. He asked the Board Members if they 
were interested in  selling their BR attribute to Zero Carbon members. Sal Segura 
asked how PWRPA would figure out how much attribute each district has to 
contribute, and Mr. McLaughlin stated that it is based on each district’s 
percentage.   



 

 3 

Ms. Bradley stated that 2023 is the 3rd of a 4-year compliance period for RECs for 
which she typically purchases 60% of the projected requirement. Ms. Bradley 
stated that her team is basing projections on 2020 which was the year after a wet 
year. Currently, PWRPA is net long for Bucket 1 and due to a spike in price from 
$15 to $45 a rec, she will not be procuring any at the moment.  She suggested that  
PWRPA districts with excess RECs can bank them from one compliance period to 
the other or they can sell to each other noting that they cannot be sold outside of 
PWRPA. She proposed that members set a price somewhat lower than market for 
internal sales. She proposed that disricts could also transact an even swap 
whereby the long district transfers to the short district and then when REC prices 
go down the short district replaces those RECs. She noted that all the districts 
currently long in CP4, are also long in CP5. Ms. Bradley stated that while she 
cannot guarantee prices will come down in 2024, she foresees they will come 
down eventually. Ms. Bradley stated that Bucket 3 RECs are not an issue at this 
time. Mr. McLaughlin requested a vote for a 2023 carbon transfer rate of $6. 

Bobby Pierce moved, Sal Segura seconded, and participating Directors unanimously 
approved the Carbon FreeTransfer rate of $6. 

Voting Shares: 87.4% Yes / 0% No / 12.6% Absent (JID, LTRID,PPID) 

6 GM OM 

 

 

A. GM Report – Update and overview.  

Mr. McLaughlin skipped to Item 7.A. 

B. OM Report – Ops highlights; CEC Demand Side Grid Support (DSGS) Program.  

Ms. Bradley stated that the DSGS program is basically the same as last year. 
PWRPA has had calls from the ISO for load reduction for which they are paying 
$2000 per Mwh. Ms. Bradley stated that CAISO is tightening up on how members 
report participation and stated that if members are interested in participating in the 
program, she will set up a call to explain participation requirements. Ms. Bradley 
stated that the market is still high but dropping. Mr. Weisenberger asked why the 
market has been so high to which Ms. Bradley enumerated the previous year’s 
lack of hydro, delays in the start up of new resources such as solar, and the 
scarcity of natural gas supplies as the determining factors.  



4 

7 GM OM Special Projects 

A. Consider and possibly approve Resolution 23-08-12 BCID Power Purchase
Agreement and Rate Agreement.

Mr. McLaughlin stated that the BCID project is onsite solar with White Pine and
this resolution is an agreement with White Pine for the BCID recs. With the  model
being employed by White Pine, excess solar can be sold into the grid which means
districts can oversize their solar, and at the same time, strip off the bucket 1 RECs
within PWRPA, thereby fully monetizing the value of the resource. Mr. McLaughlin
stated that this resolution includes the rate agreement between BCID and PWRPA
as well as a PPA with White Pine. Dale asked if unbundled power that goes to 
CAISO will have to be scheduled and if there will need to be coordination with 
respect to the pumping load and White Pine. Mr. McLaughlin answered in the
affirmative and stated that RBI time would be allocated for the scheduling. This
model will be a net energy metering for PWRPA and if a battery is added, it will
increase profitability even more. He added  that this model only works because
BBID is within PWRPA.  Mr. McLaughlin stated that White Pine has priced its
proposal very aggressively and noted that White Pine is interested in placing
facilities at other districts.

Bobby Pierce moved, Sal Segura seconded, and participating Directors unanimously 
approved Resolution 23-08-12. 

Voting Shares: 87.4% Yes / 0% No / 12.6% Absent (JID, LTRID, PPID) 

B. Update: Lower Tule River Success Hydro; Westlands Water District solar project.

Mr. McLaughlin provided updates on both projects.

8 SC GC Closed Session 

A. Conference with legal counsel – Existing litigation: PG&E WDT3 Rate Case, FERC
ER22-619, ER20-2878 consolidated. Pursuant to Gov’t Code section
54956.9(d)(1).

B. Conference with legal counsel – Existing litigation: PG&E IA, FERC ER23-1661.
Pursuant to Gov’t Code section 54956.9(d)(1).

After returning to open session, Mr. McLaughlin stated that no action was taken during 
closed session. 

9 Chair Board Matters – There were no other announcements. 

Chair Adjournment - Next Regular Meeting is Wednesday, October 4, 2023, at 9:00 A.M. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
September 22, 2023 
 
 
 
Mr. Bruce McLaughlin 
Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority 
C/o Banta Carbona Irrigation District 
3514 West Lehman Road 
Tracy, CA  95304 
 
Subject:  Request use of P3 Funds for Santa Clara Valley Water District Intertie ASD Replacement Project 
Reimbursement #1 
 
Dear Mr. McLaughlin: 
 
Santa Clara Valley Water District (SCVWD) hereby requests partial reimbursement, from Public Purpose 
Program (P3) funds held on behalf of the District, for expenses to the “SFPUC Intertie ASD Replacement 
Project”, which consist of replacing electrical equipment and associated improvements to increase 
efficiency of operation. 
 
Please find attached P3 disbursement form and invoice No. 104727 from Telstar Instruments with actual 
costs of $333,281.99. SCVWD is requesting reimbursement of $164,046.52 from available P3 funds.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
  
 
 
John Brosnan, P.E. 
Engineering Unit Manager 
 
Cc:  
 
 
Attachments: 

1. SCVWD P-3 Disbursement Request Form 
2. PWRPA P-3 Remaining Funds 
3. SFPUC Intertie ASD Replacement Project Reimbursement Request Summary 
4. Telstar Instruments Invoice No. 104727 



P-3 Disbursement Request Form 
 

Request date:    September 22, 2023                 Effective date:                                                                  

Participant:         Santa Clara Valley Water District                                                                                            
Project Description (Check below and attach a project plan plus schedule):   Santa Clara Valley Water District         

SFPUC Intertie ASD Replacement Project                                                                                                        

Requested amount (funds must be used within 1 year of effective date):      $164,046.52                 
Funds available in Participant’s Designated Account:        $164,046.52                 
Funds available in PWRPA Undesignated Account:                                                    

Approved by Board on date:                                                       

 
 Purchase, installation of interval recording meters and telemetry. (Required by Resolutions 07-02-01 

and 07-04-02) 
 

Purchase, installation of power monitoring equipment. 

 
Purchase, installation of Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) equipment  

 Research and feasibility studies to identify all potentially achievable cost-effective energy efficiency 
savings. 

X 
 

Testing, replacement or repair of pumps and motors. 

 Purchase, installation of automation equipment to facilitate future on-farm efforts to use energy in off-
peak hours. 

 Rebates, incentives for on-farm utilization of micro-sprinklers, drip tape, or other low volume irrigation 
systems. 

 Energy audits. 

 Research and feasibility studies of water use reductions that may have upstream energy conservation 
impacts. 

 Purchase, installation of variable frequency drives or soft starts on motors.  

 Research and feasibility studies to identify opportunities for distributed generation and renewable 
generation. 

 Development, construction of new distributed generation and renewable generation, or activities to 
increase output of existing units. 

 
Costs for the development and administration of P3 programs.   

 Expenditures to develop a long-term load forecasting software platform for electricity planning 
purposes (project authorized by Resolution 07-08-09) 

 
 
 
 

_________________________________                       _________________________________ 
 David Weisenberger         David Nixon 
 Chairman          Treasurer 
 





 
SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

PWRPA P3 REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST SUMMARY 
SFPUC INTERTIE ASD REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 
 
 

Invoice Date Description Amount Cumulative 
7/23/2020 Telstar Instruments Invoice No. 104272 $  333,281.99 $  333,281.99 

    
    

Request Date Description Amount Cumulative 
9/22/2023 Reimbursement #1 $  164,046.52 $  164,046.52 

    
    
   Remaining 
   $  169,235.47 

 



Invoice #
07/23/2020

Date
104272

Concord, CA  94520
925-671-2888

Due Date
8/22/2020

1717 Solano Way, Unit 34

SCVWD
Cust Id Job Address 451 SOUTH MILPITAS BOULEVARD

MILPITAS, CA 95035-

SANTA CLARA VALLEY WTR DIST
P.O. BOX 20670
SAN JOSE, CA 95160-0670

PO No. Project

10-355090000032701 NET 30

Terms

Bill To

QuantityDescription U/M Rate Amount

BASE BID

16,450.00MOBILIZATION AND DEMOLITION

148,054.00PURCHASE COST ADJUSTABLE SPEED DRIVE

3,520.00DEMOBILIZATION

47,550.00INSTALLATION COST

7,350.00FACOTRY CERTIFIED TECHNICIAN

13,694.99SALES TAX

14,450.00FREIGHT

251,068.99Subtotal

DEDUCTIVE ALTERNATES

16,520.00MEDIUM VOLTAGE CABLE INSTALALTION

3,820.00MEDIUM VOLTAGE CABLE TERMINATION

30,873.00ADDITIONAL 3 YEAR EXTENDED WARRANT

31,000.005 YEAR PREVENTION MAINTENANCE PLAN

82,213.00Subtotal

REFERENCE:   PARTIAL BILLING #1 FOR MEDIUM VOLTAGE
ADJUSTABLE SPPED DRIVE PROJECT FOR SANTA CLARA
VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

REMAINING PO BALANCE: $4,900.01

TELSTAR JOB NO. 10-35509



Invoice #
07/23/2020

Date
104272

Concord, CA  94520
925-671-2888

Due Date
8/22/2020

1717 Solano Way, Unit 34

SCVWD
Cust Id Job Address 451 SOUTH MILPITAS BOULEVARD

MILPITAS, CA 95035-

QuantityDescription U/M Rate Amount

DUE THIS INVOICE

PLEASE MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO
Telstar Instruments

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS

Sales Tax 0.00

333,281.99

333,281.99

Retention 0.00

TERMS: If payment is not received by the invoice due date, a .05% daily service charge
(18.75% per annum) will be charged on all accounts past due.

We accept all major credit cards.



 
 
 
September 22, 2023 
 
 
Bruce McLaughlin,  
Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority 
c/o Banta Carbona Irrigation District 
3514 West Lehman Road 
Tracy, CA 95304 
 
RE: Request for Reimbursement of Cap and Trade Allowance 
 
Dear Mr. McLaughlin, 
 
Santa Clara Valley Water District (SCVWD) requests to discuss and approve the following action items 
during the October 7, 2023 PWRPA Board meeting: 
 

1. Approve participation in the Specific Projects: Astoria, Whitney Point, and Slate as a Cap and 
Trade Allowance Revenue (C&T) project. 

2. Approve the reimbursement request for C&T revenue of $283,121.96 for project participation 
costs in CY2022 with actual costs of $294,315. 

 
In accordance with PWRPA Resolution 14-05-05, Cap and Trade Allowance Revenue Utilization Policy, 
allowable use of C&T revenue includes “purchases or investments in renewable resources for the 
Pooling Authority’s electric portfolio.”  As of June 30, 2023, SCVWD has sufficient C&T allowance 
revenue of $283,121.96. 
 
Please call or email with any questions or comments. 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
John Brosnan, PE 
Engineering Unit Manager 
Santa Clara Valley Water District 
 
Attachment: 

1. C&T Allowance Revenue 
2. 2022 Reconciliation Summary 

 
Cc:  







 
 
 
 

Power & Water Resources Pooling 
Authority 
 

Regular Agenda • Item 5.A 
 
 

 
1. Treasurer’s Report. 

 
 

 

 

    
      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 













 
 
 
 

Power & Water Resources Pooling 
Authority 
 

Regular Agenda • Item 5.B 
 
 

 
1. District Summaries. 

 
 

 

 

    
      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



October Budget Notes: 

1. Overheads 
a. Cost Alloca on: vo ng share, # meters, energy 
b. Core Budget changes/updates 

i. ACES contract up for renewal. Requested quote for same scope except ability 
and cost es mate to schedule new resources (like BCID solar). 

ii. RBI contract: proposing 3‐year contract. Same hours, staff, and scope, first year a 
4% increase and 3% the last 2 years. 

iii. MCG so ware: remove Hosted Data Service (HDS) 
c. Special Projects 

i. WDT3 – ongoing legal support 
2. Transmission 

a. Cost Alloca on: energy basis, published rates 
b. Rate for 2024: current 2023 rate plus 5% 

3. Distribu on 
a. Cost alloca on: peak 30‐min demand  mes published rates based on service account 
b. Rate change from last year 

 
4. Power 

a. Cost alloca on: contract shares 
b. Summary of kWh es mates 

 
c. Base Resource: Recent PRR result in es mated $29/MWh rate, similar to 2023. However 

the energy forecast is 51% higher, therefore double the revenue from the CAISO is 
dras cally reducing energy rates. 

WDT3 RY 2022 RY 2023 RY 2024 Change
WAPA Primary Rate $12.24 $16.05 $11.48 ‐28%
WAPA Secondary Rate $19.30 $30.00 $15.06 ‐50%

PRWPA SA 56 Rate (Prim.) $14.45 $25.51 $13.27 ‐48%

WAPA Primary LRS 0.006947 0.00612 ‐12%

WAPA Secondary LRS 0.001631 0.00144 ‐12%

PWRPA SA 56 LRS (Prim.) 0.000191 0.00014 ‐27%
LRS: Load Ratio Share

kWh 2023 2024
Load 302,050,683    288,802,170   ‐4%
BOR 5,069,000         4,994,000       ‐1%
BR 149,078,910    225,152,770   51%
LEC 35,782,584      25,999,885     ‐27%
Astoria 28,818,097      28,115,131     ‐2%
Whitney Point 28,389,596      27,161,566     ‐4%
Slate 62,210,990      58,040,233     ‐7%
Total Resources 309,349,176    369,463,585   19%



d. Astoria, Whitney, Slate pa erned off of 2023 which is lower average output due to 
economic curtailments due to the high hydro 

e. District Projects 
i. No Warm Springs 
ii. WWD BOR: 5,000 MWh as advised from WWD 

f. Other 
i. Resource Adequacy:  

1. Staff plans to procure System needs but will discuss with Board 
regarding new regulatory developments. 

2. Con ngency funds included. Staff will bring details to the mee ng. 
ii. Renewables: 

1. Final year of current compliance period. Half of the REC transfers are 
included in 2023 and the balance will be in 2024 when retail sales are 
known. 

2. 2024 forecast to fall under Large Hydro exemp ons considering the high 
BR forecast and low usage from WWD.  

 



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan 21,656                    12,893                    9,608,063               13,943                    9,804                      7,294,181               57,898                    15,580                    11,591,574             55% 32% 32%
Feb 38,175                    21,330                    14,845,791             48,758                    32,114                    22,351,223             93,323                    38,677                    26,918,874             ‐22% ‐34% ‐34%
Mar 38,614                    23,710                    17,638,255             30,824                    24,393                    18,148,277             113,480                  52,085                    38,699,343             25% ‐3% ‐3%
Apr 59,402                    38,351                    27,612,654             45,858                    29,045                    20,912,073             126,150                  70,960                    51,091,300             30% 32% 32%
May 69,042                    52,535                    38,975,686             58,344                    42,492                    31,614,145             134,205                  85,190                    63,381,539             18% 24% 23%
Jun 69,311                    60,596                    43,628,944             67,669                    50,629                    36,452,938             133,764                  90,109                    64,878,556             2% 20% 20%
Jul 66,051                    57,267                    42,307,851             69,635                    58,301                    43,376,010             124,735                  81,442                    60,592,577             ‐5% ‐2% ‐2%
Aug 59,054                    49,459                    36,627,180             58,143                    47,993                    35,706,759             127,411                  69,354                    51,599,515             2% 3% 3%
Sep 49,995                    38,628                    26,696,653             50,055                    40,259                    28,986,158             112,071                  57,949                    41,723,366             0% ‐4% ‐8%
Oct 45,216                    30,623                    22,587,610             49,533                    32,978                    24,535,557             104,837                  49,963                    37,172,286             ‐9% ‐7% ‐8%
Nov 30,200                    19,046                    12,980,796             37,200                    23,820                    17,150,121             92,246                    22,516                    16,234,343             ‐19% ‐20% ‐24%
Dec 23,009                    11,260                    8,325,333               16,628                    10,592                    7,880,249               47,177                    14,644                    10,895,187             38% 6% 6%
2024 301,834,816           294,407,690           474,778,459           3%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh 2024 Budget Summary ‐ AveragePWRPA

Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 20222024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual

 ‐

 10,000,000

 20,000,000

 30,000,000

 40,000,000

 50,000,000

 60,000,000

 70,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

 70,000

 80,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
301,834,816           294,407,690           3%
2,166,930$             2,098,928$             3%
10,641,760$           12,761,153$           ‐17%
10,514,355$           9,804,997$             7%
1,207,339$             1,186,455$             2%
13,776,836$           16,329,122$           ‐16%
(213,302)$               (225,325)$               ‐5%

(6,793,442)$           (3,549,301)$           91%
2,649,632$             2,504,273$             6%
1,148,710$             510,961$                125%
35,098,817$           41,421,262$           ‐15%

3%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
301,834,816           294,407,690           3%

0.72                        0.71                        1%
7.41                        8.07                        ‐8%
3.50                        5.29                        ‐34%
11.63                      14.07                      ‐17%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
310,066,073           13,776,836$           4.44                        ‐                          13,776,836$           4.44                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
4,994,000               ‐$                        ‐                          (243,837)$               (4.88)                       (243,837)$               (4.88)                      

225,152,770           4,865,115$             2.16                        (11,736,122)$         (5.21)                       (6,871,007)$           (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

25,999,885             2,100,969$             8.08                        (1,550,979)$           (5.97)                       549,990$                2.12                       
28,115,131             1,771,253$             6.30                        (1,007,103)$           (3.58)                       764,151$                2.72                       
27,161,566             1,595,742$             5.88                        (767,955)$               (2.83)                       827,787$                3.05                       
58,040,233             1,556,059$             2.68                        (1,677,672)$           (2.89)                       (121,613)$               (0.21)                      

‐                          804,000$                ‐                          (419,418)$               ‐                          384,582$                ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

(59,397,511)          
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 310,066,073           26,469,974$           8.54                        (17,403,086)$         (5.61)                       9,066,888$             2.92                       

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
310,066,073           13,776,836$           4.44                        13,776,836$           4.44                       
230,146,770           4,960,947$             2.16                        (11,979,959)$         (5.21)                       (7,019,012)$           (3.05)                      
113,316,930           5,028,123$             4.44                        (3,452,730)$           (3.05)                       1,575,393$             1.39                       
25,999,885             2,937,236$             11.30                      (1,550,979)$           (5.97)                       1,386,257$             5.33                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
1,268,377$             (419,418)$               848,959$               

369,463,585           14,194,683$           3.84                        (17,403,086)$         (4.71)                       (3,208,402)$           (0.87)                      
Net Portfolio  310,066,073           10,568,433$           3.41                       
Percent of Load Covered 119%

Generation ‐ Slate BESS
Generation ‐ Slate PV

RA & RECs

CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load

District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Generation ‐ Astoria

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable

Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Renewables

Supplemental

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Lodi Energy Center

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

Table 1.   Cost Components

Grid Mgmt & Misc
Transmission

CAISO Load Cost

Overhead

District‐Specific Projects

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

Generation
Base Resource

Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

CAISO Load

Resource Subtotal

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA
Distribution

Supplemental

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Base Resource Pooling

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

62%

31%

7%

0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

6%
30%

30%

3%

39%

‐1%
‐19%

8%

3%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

 7.00

 8.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

0.72 

7.41 

3.50 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan 7,815                      2,965                      2,206,112               2,087                      535                          398,369                  9,847                      2,270                      1,689,069               274% 454% 454%
Feb 18,560                    6,108                      4,250,827               20,786                    14,255                    9,921,632               20,795                    5,594                      3,893,393               ‐11% ‐57% ‐57%
Mar 18,678                    9,277                      6,902,271               18,614                    13,470                    10,021,390             28,805                    9,895                      7,351,691               0% ‐31% ‐31%
Apr 23,829                    16,405                    11,811,484             26,285                    15,073                    10,852,349             35,986                    19,161                    13,796,269             ‐9% 9% 9%
May 24,547                    19,125                    14,228,670             26,791                    19,617                    14,594,784             37,032                    22,385                    16,654,130             ‐8% ‐3% ‐3%
Jun 26,480                    22,784                    16,404,667             27,220                    19,813                    14,265,125             37,653                    24,915                    17,938,851             ‐3% 15% 15%
Jul 23,886                    20,460                    15,222,541             29,369                    22,486                    16,729,393             32,473                    21,238                    15,800,760             ‐19% ‐9% ‐9%
Aug 22,456                    18,440                    13,719,303             22,055                    18,110                    13,474,094             39,281                    17,020                    12,663,177             2% 2% 2%
Sep 18,903                    15,283                    11,003,636             22,238                    17,979                    12,944,878             27,456                    14,694                    10,579,915             ‐15% ‐15% ‐15%
Oct 22,067                    12,996                    9,669,066               26,355                    15,521                    11,547,740             34,840                    16,731                    12,447,914             ‐16% ‐16% ‐16%
Nov 12,940                    5,579                      4,016,929               25,757                    11,105                    7,995,890               25,086                    5,821                      4,196,752               ‐50% ‐50% ‐50%
Dec 9,854                      1,790                      1,331,934               3,368                      612                          455,289                  9,036                      1,021                      759,921                  193% 193% 193%
2024 110,767,440           123,200,933           117,771,840           ‐10%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh 2024 Budget Summary ‐ Average

2024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 2022

Arvin‐Edison

 ‐

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

 14,000,000

 16,000,000

 18,000,000

 20,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
110,767,440           123,200,933           ‐10%

372,807$                348,281$                7%
3,626,952$             3,187,355$             14%
4,153,794$             4,379,981$             ‐5%
443,070$                479,206$                ‐8%

4,980,377$             6,469,959$             ‐23%
‐$                        ‐$                        0%

(1,969,332)$           (1,172,172)$           68%
813,697$                610,845$                33%
369,580$                45,633$                  710%

12,790,944$           14,349,088$           ‐11%
2%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
110,767,440           123,200,933           ‐10%

0.34                        0.28                        19%
7.42                        6.53                        14%
3.79                        4.83                        ‐22%
11.55                      11.65                      ‐1%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
113,483,635           4,980,377$             4.39                        ‐                          4,980,377$             4.39                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

65,268,861             1,410,335$             2.16                        (3,402,153)$           (5.21)                       (1,991,818)$           (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

6,151,016               497,044$                8.08                        (366,928)$               (5.97)                       130,116$                2.12                       
10,781,236             679,218$                6.30                        (386,191)$               (3.58)                       293,027$                2.72                       
8,642,267               507,733$                5.88                        (244,348)$               (2.83)                       263,385$                3.05                       
20,097,548             538,815$                2.68                        (684,216)$               (3.40)                       (145,401)$               (0.72)                      

‐                          80,400$                  ‐                          (41,942)$                 ‐                          38,458$                  ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

2,542,707              
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 113,483,635           8,693,922$             7.66                        (5,125,778)$           (4.52)                       3,568,144$             3.14                       

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
113,483,635           4,980,377$             4.39                        4,980,377$             4.39                       
65,268,861             1,432,820$             2.20                        (3,402,153)$           (5.21)                       (1,969,332)$           (3.02)                      
39,521,051             1,758,100$             4.45                        (1,314,755)$           (3.33)                       443,345$                1.12                       
6,151,016               694,896$                11.30                      (366,928)$               (5.97)                       327,968$                5.33                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
534,306$                (41,942)$                 492,365$               

110,940,928           4,420,122$             3.98                        (5,125,778)$           (4.62)                       (705,656)$               (0.64)                      
Net Portfolio  113,483,635           4,274,721$             3.77                       
Percent of Load Covered 98%

Distribution

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

Table 1.  District Cost Components

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA

Overhead

Transmission
Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost
District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource
Generation
Supplemental
Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

Generation ‐ Astoria

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

CAISO Load
Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs
District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Base Resource Pooling

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Resource Subtotal
RA & RECs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable
CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load
Base Resource, incl WWD BOR
Renewables
Lodi Energy Center

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

Supplemental

Generation ‐ Slate PV
Generation ‐ Slate BESS

59%

36%

6%

0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

3%

28%

32%
3%

39%

0% ‐15%
6%

3%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

 7.00

 8.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

0.34 

7.42 

3.79 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan 90                            67                            50,000                    2,618                      955                          710,726                  2,521                      268                          199,741                  ‐97% ‐93% ‐93%
Feb 87                            72                            50,000                    1,897                      109                          75,603                    4,330                      3,238                      2,253,688               ‐95% ‐34% ‐34%
Mar 1,593                      1,109                      825,000                  2,438                      2,059                      1,531,763               4,670                      3,874                      2,878,634               ‐35% ‐46% ‐46%
Apr 3,072                      2,431                      1,750,000               2,727                      1,145                      824,162                  4,954                      4,006                      2,884,326               13% 112% 112%
May 4,160                      3,360                      2,500,000               2,581                      1,634                      1,215,980               4,757                      3,703                      2,754,942               61% 106% 106%
Jun 4,072                      3,264                      2,350,000               4,182                      3,285                      2,365,359               3,455                      2,617                      1,884,119               ‐3% ‐1% ‐1%
Jul 4,316                      3,226                      2,400,000               4,751                      3,285                      2,444,048               3,175                      2,598                      1,932,571               ‐9% ‐2% ‐2%
Aug 3,721                      2,419                      1,800,000               4,042                      2,628                      1,955,402               2,666                      1,980                      1,473,166               ‐8% ‐8% ‐8%
Sep 3,923                      2,153                      1,550,000               4,809                      2,639                      1,900,000               3,475                      2,255                      1,623,493               ‐18% ‐18% ‐18%
Oct 1,209                      672                          500,000                  2,175                      1,210                      900,000                  1,859                      1,153                      858,037                  ‐44% ‐44% ‐44%
Nov 1,071                      278                          200,000                  1,339                      347                          250,000                  1,924                      393                          283,149                  ‐20% ‐20% ‐20%
Dec 505                          87                            65,000                    622                          108                          80,000                    2,595                      1,603                      1,192,748               ‐19% ‐19% ‐19%
2024 14,040,000             14,253,043             20,218,615             ‐1%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh 2024 Budget Summary ‐ Average

2024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 2022

Banta‐Carbona

 ‐

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

 3,500,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

 4,000

 4,500

 5,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
14,040,000             14,253,043             ‐1%

86,874$                  81,623$                  6%
‐$                        ‐$                        0%

520,489$                486,199$                7%
56,160$                  50,455$                  11%
587,113$                762,515$                ‐23%

‐$                        ‐$                        0%
(242,886)$               (145,663)$               67%
253,555$                180,819$                40%
124,482$                169,741$                ‐27%

1,385,785$             1,585,688$             ‐13%
1%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
14,040,000             14,253,043             ‐1%

0.62                        0.57                        8%
4.11                        3.77                        9%
5.14                        6.79                        ‐24%
9.87                        11.13                      ‐11%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
14,220,000             587,113$                4.13                        ‐                          587,113$                4.13                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

8,049,887               173,943$                2.16                        (419,602)$               (5.21)                       (245,659)$               (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

2,313,264               186,928$                8.08                        (137,994)$               (5.97)                       48,934$                  2.12                       
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

4,464,187               119,685$                2.68                        (77,415)$                 (1.73)                       42,270$                  0.95                       
‐                          160,800$                ‐                          (83,884)$                 ‐                          76,916$                  ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

(607,338)                
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 14,220,000             1,228,468$             8.64                        (718,894)$               (5.06)                       509,573$                3.58                       

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
14,220,000             587,113$                4.13                        587,113$                4.13                       
8,049,887               176,716$                2.20                        (419,602)$               (5.21)                       (242,886)$               (3.02)                      
4,464,187               122,858$                2.75                        (77,415)$                 (1.73)                       45,443$                  1.02                       
2,313,264               261,335$                11.30                      (137,994)$               (5.97)                       123,341$                5.33                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
293,135$                (83,884)$                 209,252$               

14,827,338             854,045$                5.76                        (718,894)$               (4.85)                       135,150$                0.91                       
Net Portfolio  14,220,000             722,263$                5.08                       
Percent of Load Covered 104%

Distribution

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

Table 1.  District Cost Components

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA

Overhead

Transmission
Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost
District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource
Generation
Supplemental
Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

Generation ‐ Astoria

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

CAISO Load
Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs
District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Base Resource Pooling

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Resource Subtotal
RA & RECs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable
CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load
Base Resource, incl WWD BOR
Renewables
Lodi Energy Center

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

Supplemental

Generation ‐ Slate PV
Generation ‐ Slate BESS

54%30%

16%

0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

6%

0%

38%

4%

42%

0%

‐18%

18%
9%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

0.62 

4.11 

5.14 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan 31                            22                            16,023                    37                            23                            17,110                    35                            22                            16,712                    ‐15% ‐6% ‐6%
Feb 35                            22                            15,290                    37                            28                            19,181                    152                          41                            28,444                    ‐3% ‐20% ‐20%
Mar 1,477                      120                          88,910                    35                            23                            17,257                    805                          341                          253,680                  4143% 415% 415%
Apr 725                          377                          271,618                  464                          289                          208,368                  598                          342                          246,312                  56% 30% 30%
May 867                          562                          418,346                  830                          428                          318,489                  912                          511                          380,070                  4% 31% 31%
Jun 971                          649                          466,959                  1,054                      778                          560,234                  1,038                      643                          462,607                  ‐8% ‐17% ‐17%
Jul 1,038                      590                          438,957                  1,069                      726                          540,176                  771                          539                          401,007                  ‐3% ‐19% ‐19%
Aug 822                          482                          358,452                  936                          586                          435,738                  651                          425                          316,106                  ‐12% ‐18% ‐18%
Sep 653                          402                          289,180                  608                          408                          293,643                  602                          363                          261,316                  7% ‐2% ‐2%
Oct 522                          316                          235,251                  621                          304                          225,981                  612                          287                          213,170                  ‐16% 4% 4%
Nov 249                          50                            35,861                    118                          43                            30,631                    306                          57                            41,087                    112% 17% 17%
Dec 119                          29                            21,682                    44                            30                            22,277                    37                            18                            13,729                    168% ‐3% ‐3%
2024 2,656,528               2,689,085               2,634,241               ‐1%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh Byron‐Bethany 2024 Budget Summary ‐ Average

2024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 2022

 ‐

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 200

 400

 600

 800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
2,656,528               2,689,085               ‐1%

56,886$                  51,781$                  10%
85,114$                  93,134$                  ‐9%
99,358$                  98,349$                  1%
10,626$                  9,546$                    11%
113,442$                132,597$                ‐14%

‐$                        ‐$                        0%
(131,290)$               (63,414)$                 107%
65,032$                  62,594$                  4%
91,171$                  105,588$                ‐14%
390,339$                490,175$                ‐20%

2%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
2,656,528               2,689,085               ‐1%

2.14                        1.93                        11%
7.34                        7.48                        ‐2%
5.21                        8.83                        ‐41%
14.69                      18.23                      ‐19%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
2,714,500               113,442$                4.18                        ‐                          113,442$                4.18                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

4,351,302               94,023$                  2.16                        (226,813)$               (5.21)                       (132,789)$               (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

1,090,257               88,100$                  8.08                        (65,037)$                 (5.97)                       23,063$                  2.12                       
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

667,596                  17,898$                  2.68                        (17,830)$                 (2.67)                       68$                          0.01                       
‐                          12,060$                  ‐                          (6,291)$                   ‐                          5,769$                    ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

(3,394,656)             
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 2,714,500               325,523$                11.99                      (315,971)$               (11.64)                     9,552$                    0.35                       

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
2,714,500               113,442$                4.18                        113,442$                4.18                       
4,351,302               95,522$                  2.20                        (226,813)$               (5.21)                       (131,290)$               (3.02)                      
667,596                  18,373$                  2.75                        (17,830)$                 (2.67)                       543$                       0.08                       

1,090,257               123,169$                11.30                      (65,037)$                 (5.97)                       58,132$                  5.33                       
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

103,820$                (6,291)$                   97,529$                 
6,109,156               340,885$                5.58                        (315,971)$               (5.17)                       24,913$                  0.41                       

Net Portfolio  2,714,500               138,355$                5.10                       
Percent of Load Covered 225%

Distribution

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

Table 1.  District Cost Components

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA

Overhead

Transmission
Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost
District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource
Generation
Supplemental
Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

Generation ‐ Astoria

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

CAISO Load
Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs
District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Base Resource Pooling

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Resource Subtotal
RA & RECs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable
CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load
Base Resource, incl WWD BOR
Renewables
Lodi Energy Center

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

Supplemental

Generation ‐ Slate PV
Generation ‐ Slate BESS 71%

11%

18%

0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

15%
22%

25%

3%

29%
0%

‐34%

17%

23%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

 7.00

 8.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

2.14 

7.34 

5.21 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan 2,092                      143                          106,644                  86                            17                            12,499                    93                            25                            18,766                    2322% 753% 753%
Feb 2,963                      1,138                      791,788                  89                            27                            18,552                    1,659                      878                          611,430                  3248% 4168% 4168%
Mar 2,613                      716                          532,557                  458                          106                          78,853                    1,644                      1,022                      759,461                  470% 575% 575%
Apr 2,987                      904                          651,022                  3,534                      1,366                      983,413                  3,336                      1,030                      741,874                  ‐15% ‐34% ‐34%
May 5,506                      2,184                      1,625,106               5,333                      3,316                      2,466,841               2,341                      1,287                      957,198                  3% ‐34% ‐34%
Jun 5,277                      3,301                      2,376,393               6,651                      4,278                      3,080,040               2,591                      1,829                      1,316,531               ‐21% ‐23% ‐23%
Jul 5,576                      3,816                      2,838,784               6,281                      6,066                      4,513,306               3,813                      2,005                      1,491,521               ‐11% ‐37% ‐37%
Aug 4,461                      3,608                      2,684,319               7,508                      4,473                      3,327,646               2,527                      2,000                      1,488,105               ‐41% ‐19% ‐19%
Sep 5,055                      1,894                      1,363,346               4,628                      1,836                      1,322,089               2,534                      1,837                      1,322,347               9% 3% 3%
Oct 3,263                      1,139                      847,276                  3,088                      1,144                      851,225                  3,060                      1,233                      917,250                  6% 0% 0%
Nov 3,773                      461                          332,058                  828                          389                          280,407                  2,351                      465                          334,962                  356% 18% 18%
Dec 3,754                      214                          159,042                  881                          215                          160,150                  264                          22                            16,542                    326% ‐1% ‐1%
2024 14,308,335             17,095,019             9,975,987               ‐16%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh 2024 Budget Summary ‐ Average

2024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 2022

Cawelo

 ‐

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

 3,500,000

 4,000,000

 4,500,000

 5,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 1,000

 2,000

 3,000

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
14,308,335             17,095,019             ‐16%

85,512$                  77,849$                  10%
427,760$                638,349$                ‐33%
543,314$                679,901$                ‐20%
57,233$                  65,676$                  ‐13%
651,260$                920,788$                ‐29%

‐$                        ‐$                        0%
(116,644)$               (125,171)$               ‐7%
231,533$                150,852$                53%
(198,635)$               (218,293)$               ‐9%
1,681,334$             2,189,953$             ‐23%

4%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
14,308,335             17,095,019             ‐16%

0.60                        0.46                        31%
7.19                        8.10                        ‐11%
3.97                        4.26                        ‐7%
11.75                      12.81                      ‐8%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
14,843,593             651,260$                4.39                        ‐                          651,260$                4.39                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

3,865,873               83,534$                  2.16                        (201,509)$               (5.21)                       (117,975)$               (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

1,946,890               157,322$                8.08                        (116,138)$               (5.97)                       41,184$                  2.12                       
1,684,042               106,095$                6.30                        (60,323)$                 (3.58)                       45,771$                  2.72                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
9,265,074               248,397$                2.68                        (255,073)$               (2.75)                       (6,676)$                   (0.07)                      

‐                          152,760$                ‐                          (79,689)$                 ‐                          73,071$                  ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

(1,918,286)             
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 14,843,593             1,399,368$             9.43                        (712,734)$               (4.80)                       686,634$                4.63                       

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
14,843,593             651,260$                4.39                        651,260$                4.39                       
3,865,873               84,866$                  2.20                        (201,509)$               (5.21)                       (116,644)$               (3.02)                      
10,949,116             362,591$                3.31                        (315,397)$               (2.88)                       47,194$                  0.43                       
1,946,890               219,945$                11.30                      (116,138)$               (5.97)                       103,807$                5.33                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
(38,414)$                 (79,689)$                 (118,104)$              

16,761,879             628,988$                3.75                        (712,734)$               (4.25)                       (83,746)$                 (0.50)                      
Net Portfolio  14,843,593             567,514$                3.82                       
Percent of Load Covered 113%

Distribution

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

Table 1.  District Cost Components

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA

Overhead

Transmission
Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost
District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource
Generation
Supplemental
Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

Generation ‐ Astoria

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

CAISO Load
Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs
District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Base Resource Pooling

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Resource Subtotal
RA & RECs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable
CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load
Base Resource, incl WWD BOR
Renewables
Lodi Energy Center

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

Supplemental

Generation ‐ Slate PV
Generation ‐ Slate BESS

23%

65%

12%

0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

5%
25%

32%

3%

39%

0%

‐7%
14%

‐12%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

 7.00

 8.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

0.60 

7.19 

3.97 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan 695                          143                          106,359                  367                          108                          80,037                    412                          126                          93,728                    90% 33% 33%
Feb 717                          151                          104,764                  685                          188                          130,574                  653                          195                          135,375                  5% ‐20% ‐20%
Mar 163                          99                            73,550                    467                          130                          96,996                    808                          328                          243,524                  ‐65% ‐24% ‐24%
Apr 1,357                      522                          376,026                  1,706                      407                          293,141                  308                          186                          133,955                  ‐20% 28% 28%
May 4,570                      2,700                      2,008,455               3,104                      2,261                      1,682,519               630                          292                          217,570                  47% 19% 19%
Jun 3,757                      2,987                      2,150,331               3,648                      2,742                      1,973,968               825                          433                          311,414                  3% 9% 9%
Jul 3,959                      3,462                      2,575,737               3,694                      3,292                      2,449,576               729                          425                          315,942                  7% 5% 5%
Aug 3,612                      2,393                      1,780,320               3,130                      2,300                      1,711,170               614                          395                          293,997                  15% 4% 4%
Sep 1,329                      648                          466,328                  1,211                      648                          466,328                  997                          447                          321,525                  10% 0% 0%
Oct 1,618                      1,009                      750,571                  1,640                      1,009                      750,571                  863                          463                          344,548                  ‐1% 0% 0%
Nov 1,974                      959                          690,266                  2,183                      959                          690,266                  562                          217                          156,483                  ‐10% 0% 0%
Dec 2,354                      526                          391,528                  1,211                      526                          391,528                  1,103                      448                          333,177                  94% 0% 0%
2024 11,474,235             10,716,673             2,901,236               7%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh Glenn‐Colusa 2024 Budget Summary ‐ Average

2024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 2022

 ‐

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

 4,000

 4,500

 5,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
11,474,235             10,716,673             7%

85,881$                  79,647$                  8%
132,529$                174,232$                ‐24%
424,536$                375,073$                13%
45,897$                  36,393$                  26%
496,894$                534,252$                ‐7%

‐$                        ‐$                        0%
(219,449)$               (131,596)$               67%
103,514$                91,878$                  13%
62,124$                  46,090$                  35%

1,131,927$             1,205,969$             ‐6%
2%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
11,474,235             10,716,673             7%

0.75                        0.74                        1%
5.25                        5.47                        ‐4%
3.86                        5.04                        ‐23%
9.86                        11.25                      ‐12%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
11,711,447             496,894$                4.24                        ‐                          496,894$                4.24                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

7,273,110               157,158$                2.16                        (379,112)$               (5.21)                       (221,954)$               (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

1,305,397               105,485$                8.08                        (77,871)$                 (5.97)                       27,614$                  2.12                       
890,997                  56,133$                  6.30                        (31,916)$                 (3.58)                       24,217$                  2.72                       
740,696                  43,516$                  5.88                        (20,942)$                 (2.83)                       22,574$                  3.05                       

1,671,893               44,823$                  2.68                        (60,408)$                 (3.61)                       (15,585)$                 (0.93)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

(170,646)                
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 11,711,447             904,010$                7.72                        (570,250)$               (4.87)                       333,760$                2.85                       

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
11,711,447             496,894$                4.24                        496,894$                4.24                       
7,273,110               159,664$                2.20                        (379,112)$               (5.21)                       (219,449)$               (3.02)                      
3,303,586               147,178$                4.46                        (113,267)$               (3.43)                       33,911$                  1.03                       
1,305,397               147,474$                11.30                      (77,871)$                 (5.97)                       69,603$                  5.33                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
62,124$                  ‐$                        62,124$                 

11,882,093             516,439$                4.35                        (570,250)$               (4.80)                       (53,811)$                 (0.45)                      
Net Portfolio  11,711,447             443,084$                3.78                       
Percent of Load Covered 101%

Distribution

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

Table 1.  District Cost Components

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA

Overhead

Transmission
Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost
District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource
Generation
Supplemental
Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

Generation ‐ Astoria

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

CAISO Load
Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs
District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Base Resource Pooling

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Resource Subtotal
RA & RECs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable
CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load
Base Resource, incl WWD BOR
Renewables
Lodi Energy Center

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

Supplemental

Generation ‐ Slate PV
Generation ‐ Slate BESS

61%

28%

11%

0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

8% 12%

38%

4%44%

0%
‐19%

9% 5%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

0.75 

5.25 

3.86 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan 480                          157                          116,964                  411                          49                            36,632                    673                          153                          114,007                  17% 219% 219%
Feb 834                          424                          294,827                  440                          263                          183,317                  757                          437                          303,874                  90% 61% 61%
Mar 696                          352                          261,769                  63                            17                            12,764                    770                          595                          442,249                  1013% 1951% 1951%
Apr 574                          449                          323,371                  95                            22                            15,751                    943                          682                          491,232                  505% 1953% 1953%
May 782                          561                          417,617                  233                          42                            31,099                    1,227                      867                          645,284                  236% 1243% 1243%
Jun 919                          660                          475,370                  202                          59                            42,434                    1,163                      1,051                      756,900                  355% 1020% 1020%
Jul 909                          613                          456,263                  540                          110                          81,997                    1,262                      818                          608,883                  68% 456% 456%
Aug 615                          497                          369,807                  113                          87                            64,596                    1,003                      710                          528,598                  444% 472% 472%
Sep 719                          441                          317,253                  687                          576                          414,700                  757                          576                          414,660                  5% ‐23% ‐23%
Oct 445                          284                          211,389                  681                          349                          259,300                  660                          621                          461,697                  ‐35% ‐18% ‐18%
Nov 424                          202                          145,558                  218                          69                            49,800                    1,254                      343                          247,613                  95% 192% 192%
Dec 30                            8                              5,969                      9                              8                              5,900                      9                              8                              5,847                      242% 1% 1%
2024 3,396,156               1,198,290               5,020,842               183%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh James 2024 Budget Summary ‐ Average

2024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 2022

 ‐

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

 700,000

 800,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 100

 200

 300

 400

 500

 600

 700

 800

 900

 1,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
3,396,156               1,198,290               183%

59,441$                  53,279$                  12%
91,917$                  72,844$                  26%
127,001$                22,008$                  477%
13,585$                  2,392$                    468%
156,336$                37,689$                  315%

‐$                        ‐$                        0%
(46,467)$                 (16,698)$                 178%
64,362$                  62,882$                  2%

858$                       2,508$                    ‐66%
467,032$                236,906$                97%

2%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
3,396,156               1,198,290               183%

1.75                        4.45                        ‐61%
6.85                        8.12                        ‐16%
5.16                        7.21                        ‐28%
13.75                      19.77                      ‐30%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
3,469,715               156,336$                4.51                        ‐                          156,336$                4.51                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

1,540,045               33,277$                  2.16                        (80,275)$                 (5.21)                       (46,998)$                 (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

1,032,202               83,409$                  8.08                        (61,574)$                 (5.97)                       21,835$                  2.12                       
226,552                  14,273$                  6.30                        (8,115)$                   (3.58)                       6,158$                    2.72                       
246,899                  14,505$                  5.88                        (6,981)$                   (2.83)                       7,525$                    3.05                       
557,298                  14,941$                  2.68                        (20,136)$                 (3.61)                       (5,195)$                   (0.93)                      

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

(133,280)                
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 3,469,715               316,742$                9.13                        (177,081)$               (5.10)                       139,660$                4.03                       

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
3,469,715               156,336$                4.51                        156,336$                4.51                       
1,540,045               33,808$                  2.20                        (80,275)$                 (5.21)                       (46,467)$                 (3.02)                      
1,030,748               44,558$                  4.32                        (35,232)$                 (3.42)                       9,326$                    0.90                       
1,032,202               116,610$                11.30                      (61,574)$                 (5.97)                       55,036$                  5.33                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
858$                       ‐$                        858$                      

3,602,995               195,834$                5.44                        (177,081)$               (4.91)                       18,753$                  0.52                       
Net Portfolio  3,469,715               175,089$                5.05                       
Percent of Load Covered 104%

Distribution

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

Table 1.  District Cost Components

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA

Overhead

Transmission
Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost
District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource
Generation
Supplemental
Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

Generation ‐ Astoria

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

CAISO Load
Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs
District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Base Resource Pooling

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Resource Subtotal
RA & RECs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable
CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load
Base Resource, incl WWD BOR
Renewables
Lodi Energy Center

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

Supplemental

Generation ‐ Slate PV
Generation ‐ Slate BESS

43%

29%

29%

0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

13%

20%

27%

3%

33%

0% ‐10%
14%

0%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

 7.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

1.75 

6.85 

5.16 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan 2,013                      542                          403,228                  1,238                      200                          148,828                  2,104                      621                          461,914                  63% 171% 171%
Feb 1,771                      949                          660,813                  1,183                      322                          224,267                  2,603                      785                          546,507                  50% 195% 195%
Mar 2,763                      664                          494,221                  1,191                      266                          197,635                  1,849                      444                          329,659                  132% 150% 150%
Apr 3,311                      738                          531,309                  1,982                      1,005                      723,850                  2,258                      711                          511,912                  67% ‐27% ‐27%
May 3,242                      1,307                      972,274                  2,520                      1,640                      1,219,861               2,014                      964                          717,100                  29% ‐20% ‐20%
Jun 2,894                      1,615                      1,162,443               2,584                      1,818                      1,308,676               2,269                      970                          698,249                  12% ‐11% ‐11%
Jul 2,378                      1,702                      1,266,513               2,566                      2,089                      1,554,399               2,462                      880                          654,486                  ‐7% ‐19% ‐19%
Aug 2,244                      1,708                      1,271,104               3,739                      2,044                      1,520,481               2,460                      1,081                      804,163                  ‐40% ‐16% ‐16%
Sep 2,492                      1,339                      964,088                  2,294                      1,419                      1,021,825               1,931                      919                          661,484                  9% ‐6% ‐6%
Oct 2,139                      1,098                      816,862                  2,289                      1,107                      823,342                  1,935                      870                          647,330                  ‐7% ‐1% ‐1%
Nov 2,526                      778                          560,022                  2,374                      753                          542,372                  2,195                      705                          508,094                  6% 3% 3%
Dec 2,303                      558                          415,295                  1,998                      569                          423,417                  1,450                      315                          234,564                  15% ‐2% ‐2%
2024 9,518,173               9,708,953               6,775,462               ‐2%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh Lower Tule 2024 Budget Summary ‐ Average

2024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 2022

 ‐

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

 1,400,000

 1,600,000

 1,800,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
9,518,173               9,708,953               ‐2%

71,567$                  65,472$                  9%
342,558$                420,906$                ‐19%
364,505$                366,142$                0%
38,073$                  42,790$                  ‐11%
456,804$                537,994$                ‐15%

‐$                        ‐$                        0%
(60,000)$                 (70,691)$                 ‐15%

‐$                        ‐$                        0%
(800)$                      1,157$                    ‐169%

1,212,707$             1,363,771$             ‐11%
5%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
9,518,173               9,708,953               ‐2%

0.75                        0.67                        11%
7.83                        8.55                        ‐8%
4.16                        4.83                        ‐14%
12.74                      14.05                      ‐9%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
9,958,463               456,804$                4.59                        ‐                          456,804$                4.59                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

1,988,549               42,969$                  2.16                        (103,654)$               (5.21)                       (60,685)$                 (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

7,969,914              
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 9,958,463               499,773$                5.02                        (103,654)$               (1.04)                       396,119$                3.98                       

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
9,958,463               456,804$                4.59                        456,804$                4.59                       
1,988,549               43,654$                  2.20                        (103,654)$               (5.21)                       (60,000)$                 (3.02)                      

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

(800)$                      ‐$                        (800)$                     
1,988,549               42,854$                  2.16                        (103,654)$               (5.21)                       (60,800)$                 (3.06)                      

Net Portfolio  9,958,463               396,004$                3.98                       
Percent of Load Covered 20%

Distribution

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

Table 1.  District Cost Components

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA

Overhead

Transmission
Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost
District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource
Generation
Supplemental
Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

Generation ‐ Astoria

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

CAISO Load
Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs
District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Base Resource Pooling

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Resource Subtotal
RA & RECs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable
CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load
Base Resource, incl WWD BOR
Renewables
Lodi Energy Center

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

Supplemental

Generation ‐ Slate PV
Generation ‐ Slate BESS

100%

0%0%0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

6%

28%

30%

3%

38%

0%

‐5%

0%0%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

 7.00

 8.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

0.75 

7.83 

4.16 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan ‐                          ‐                          15,393                    10                            8                              5,857                      12                            8                              5,920                      ‐100% ‐100% 163%
Feb 11                            9                              6,056                      11                            8                              5,532                      12                            8                              5,763                      3% 9% 9%
Mar 87                            7                              5,380                      144                          13                            9,741                      14                            10                            7,130                      ‐40% ‐45% ‐45%
Apr 450                          182                          130,987                  1,412                      217                          155,906                  14                            10                            7,489                      ‐68% ‐16% ‐16%
May 1,475                      683                          508,349                  1,615                      1,085                      807,073                  17                            12                            9,231                      ‐9% ‐37% ‐37%
Jun 1,057                      810                          583,450                  1,439                      1,138                      819,550                  18                            13                            9,622                      ‐27% ‐29% ‐29%
Jul 918                          807                          600,622                  1,430                      1,091                      811,479                  17                            13                            9,459                      ‐36% ‐26% ‐26%
Aug 819                          382                          284,559                  1,446                      594                          441,905                  17                            12                            8,872                      ‐43% ‐36% ‐36%
Sep 403                          72                            52,196                    480                          128                          91,816                    17                            11                            8,042                      ‐16% ‐43% ‐43%
Oct 754                          480                          356,830                  830                          637                          474,055                  14                            10                            7,392                      ‐9% ‐25% ‐25%
Nov 1,492                      276                          198,826                  851                          565                          407,146                  15                            8                              5,547                      75% ‐51% ‐51%
Dec 197                          159                          118,173                  364                          286                          212,987                  218                          13                            10,015                    ‐46% ‐45% ‐45%
2024 2,860,819               4,243,047               94,481                    ‐33%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh Princeton 2024 Budget Summary ‐ Average

2024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 2022

 ‐

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

 700,000

 800,000

 900,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

 1,600

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
2,860,819               4,243,047               ‐33%

57,063$                  52,871$                  8%
90,796$                  187,020$                ‐51%
44,371$                  62,150$                  ‐29%
11,443$                  15,472$                  ‐26%
122,436$                202,725$                ‐40%

‐$                        ‐$                        0%
(49,232)$                 (30,900)$                 59%
69,975$                  66,332$                  5%
3,404$                    3,423$                    ‐1%

350,255$                559,094$                ‐37%
2%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
2,860,819               4,243,047               ‐33%

1.99                        1.25                        60%
5.12                        6.24                        ‐18%
5.12                        5.69                        ‐10%
12.24                      13.18                      ‐7%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
2,923,454               122,436$                4.19                        ‐                          122,436$                4.19                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

1,631,682               35,258$                  2.16                        (85,052)$                 (5.21)                       (49,794)$                 (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

1,089,841               88,067$                  8.08                        (65,013)$                 (5.97)                       23,054$                  2.12                       
316,998                  19,971$                  6.30                        (11,355)$                 (3.58)                       8,616$                    2.72                       
246,899                  14,505$                  5.88                        (6,981)$                   (2.83)                       7,525$                    3.05                       
557,298                  14,941$                  2.68                        (20,136)$                 (3.61)                       (5,195)$                   (0.93)                      

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

(919,264)                
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 2,923,454               295,177$                10.10                      (188,536)$               (6.45)                       106,641$                3.65                       

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
2,923,454               122,436$                4.19                        122,436$                4.19                       
1,631,682               35,820$                  2.20                        (85,052)$                 (5.21)                       (49,232)$                 (3.02)                      
1,121,195               50,337$                  4.49                        (38,472)$                 (3.43)                       11,865$                  1.06                       
1,089,841               123,122$                11.30                      (65,013)$                 (5.97)                       58,110$                  5.33                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
3,404$                    ‐$                        3,404$                   

3,842,718               212,683$                5.53                        (188,536)$               (4.91)                       24,147$                  0.63                       
Net Portfolio  2,923,454               146,582$                5.01                       
Percent of Load Covered 131%

Distribution

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

Table 1.  District Cost Components

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA

Overhead

Transmission
Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost
District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource
Generation
Supplemental
Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

Generation ‐ Astoria

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

CAISO Load
Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs
District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Base Resource Pooling

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Resource Subtotal
RA & RECs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable
CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load
Base Resource, incl WWD BOR
Renewables
Lodi Energy Center

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

Supplemental

Generation ‐ Slate PV
Generation ‐ Slate BESS

42%

29%

28%

0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

16%

26%

13%

3%35%

0%

‐14%

20%

1%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

1.99 

5.12  5.12 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan 303                          68                            50,779                    300                          59                            43,607                    440                          72                            53,396                    1% 16% 16%
Feb 328                          54                            37,374                    323                          58                            40,271                    467                          83                            57,514                    2% ‐7% ‐7%
Mar 390                          107                          79,688                    271                          56                            41,764                    608                          233                          173,163                  44% 91% 91%
Apr 543                          166                          119,388                  308                          67                            48,057                    628                          164                          117,972                  76% 148% 148%
May 872                          443                          329,755                  383                          126                          93,988                    790                          288                          214,388                  128% 251% 251%
Jun 852                          582                          419,326                  1,104                      493                          354,754                  741                          323                          232,509                  ‐23% 18% 18%
Jul 959                          730                          542,936                  1,161                      801                          596,023                  743                          336                          250,203                  ‐17% ‐9% ‐9%
Aug 904                          597                          444,312                  1,085                      713                          530,464                  728                          319                          237,270                  ‐17% ‐16% ‐16%
Sep 616                          218                          156,762                  349                          182                          130,795                  660                          172                          123,598                  76% 20% 20%
Oct 343                          145                          107,793                  274                          66                            49,197                    502                          119                          88,687                    25% 119% 119%
Nov 415                          201                          144,984                  468                          140                          101,050                  505                          165                          119,181                  ‐11% 43% 43%
Dec 363                          136                          101,255                  565                          131                          97,368                    691                          150                          111,240                  ‐36% 4% 4%
2024 2,534,352               2,127,338               1,779,121               19%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh RD108 2024 Budget Summary ‐ Average

2024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 2022

 ‐

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

 700,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
2,534,352               2,127,338               19%

60,043$                  55,397$                  8%
133,739$                139,673$                ‐4%
96,022$                  80,785$                  19%
10,137$                  8,347$                    21%
114,244$                129,002$                ‐11%

‐$                        ‐$                        0%
(39,327)$                 (30,361)$                 30%
65,620$                  56,519$                  16%
(16,749)$                 (17,952)$                 ‐7%
423,728$                421,409$                1%

4%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
2,534,352               2,127,338               19%

2.37                        2.60                        ‐9%
9.47                        10.76                      ‐12%
4.88                        6.45                        ‐24%
16.72                      19.81                      ‐16%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
2,623,355               114,244$                4.35                        ‐                          114,244$                4.35                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

1,303,409               28,164$                  2.16                        (67,940)$                 (5.21)                       (39,776)$                 (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

579,044                  46,791$                  8.08                        (34,542)$                 (5.97)                       12,249$                  2.12                       
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

617,382                  36,271$                  5.88                        (17,456)$                 (2.83)                       18,816$                  3.05                       
667,596                  17,898$                  2.68                        (13,636)$                 (2.04)                       4,262$                    0.64                       

‐                          20,100$                  ‐                          (10,485)$                 ‐                          9,615$                    ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

(544,077)                
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 2,623,355               263,468$                10.04                      (144,059)$               (5.49)                       119,409$                4.55                       

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
2,623,355               114,244$                4.35                        114,244$                4.35                       
1,303,409               28,613$                  2.20                        (67,940)$                 (5.21)                       (39,327)$                 (3.02)                      
1,284,979               55,241$                  4.30                        (31,092)$                 (2.42)                       24,150$                  1.88                       
579,044                  65,416$                  11.30                      (34,542)$                 (5.97)                       30,874$                  5.33                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
4,332$                    (10,485)$                 (6,153)$                  

3,167,432               153,603$                4.85                        (144,059)$               (4.55)                       9,543$                    0.30                       
Net Portfolio  2,623,355               123,787$                4.72                       
Percent of Load Covered 121%

Distribution

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

Table 1.  District Cost Components

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA

Overhead

Transmission
Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost
District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource
Generation
Supplemental
Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

Generation ‐ Astoria

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

CAISO Load
Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs
District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Base Resource Pooling

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Resource Subtotal
RA & RECs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable
CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load
Base Resource, incl WWD BOR
Renewables
Lodi Energy Center

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

Supplemental

Generation ‐ Slate PV
Generation ‐ Slate BESS

41%

41%

18%

0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

14%

32%

23%

2%

27%

0% ‐9%

15%

‐4%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐
 1.00
 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

 7.00

 8.00

 9.00

 10.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

2.37 

9.47 

4.88 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan 3,018                      1,770                      1,316,888               3,385                      1,997                      1,485,795               3,426                      1,887                      1,404,142               ‐11% ‐11% ‐11%
Feb 2,827                      1,836                      1,278,167               3,193                      2,075                      1,444,194               4,054                      1,902                      1,323,914               ‐11% ‐11% ‐11%
Mar 2,961                      1,918                      1,424,898               2,912                      1,650                      1,227,654               4,742                      2,735                      2,032,195               2% 16% 16%
Apr 3,081                      2,033                      1,463,894               3,450                      2,340                      1,685,141               4,071                      2,160                      1,555,220               ‐11% ‐13% ‐13%
May 5,988                      2,648                      1,860,053               3,915                      2,450                      1,822,762               4,255                      2,476                      1,842,421               53% 8% 2%
Jun 3,852                      2,865                      2,062,598               4,117                      2,844                      2,047,571               4,412                      2,760                      1,987,513               ‐6% 1% 1%
Jul 6,270                      3,419                      2,244,511               3,843                      3,123                      2,323,665               5,431                      3,031                      2,254,692               63% 9% ‐3%
Aug 5,376                      3,291                      2,278,153               3,968                      3,169                      2,357,621               4,821                      3,141                      2,336,534               35% 4% ‐3%
Sep 5,387                      4,463                      2,097,467               3,877                      2,926                      2,106,638               4,680                      2,856                      2,056,136               39% 53% 0%
Oct 4,636                      2,798                      1,885,674               3,526                      2,530                      1,882,241               4,949                      2,527                      1,880,319               31% 11% 0%
Nov 4,337                      3,104                      1,502,681               3,062                      2,088                      1,503,591               4,757                      1,959                      1,412,776               42% 49% 0%
Dec 3,800                      1,784                      1,275,531               2,594                      1,715                      1,276,043               3,065                      1,651                      1,228,704               46% 4% 0%
2024 20,690,515             21,162,916             21,314,566             ‐2%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh Santa Clara 2024 Budget Summary ‐ Average

2024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 2022

 ‐

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 1,000

 2,000

 3,000

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000

 7,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
20,690,515             21,162,916             ‐2%

107,044$                103,116$                4%
643,651$                1,182,735$             ‐46%
471,894$                470,438$                0%
82,762$                  98,116$                  ‐16%

1,015,417$             1,310,705$             ‐23%
‐$                        ‐$                        0%

(99,178)$                 (138,936)$               ‐29%
191,908$                157,625$                22%
249,032$                228,982$                9%

2,662,530$             3,412,780$             ‐22%
2%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
20,690,515             21,162,916             ‐2%

0.52                        0.49                        6%
5.79                        8.28                        ‐30%
6.56                        7.36                        ‐11%
12.87                      16.13                      ‐20%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
21,196,856             1,015,417$             4.79                        ‐                          1,015,417$             4.79                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

3,287,005               71,026$                  2.16                        (171,336)$               (5.21)                       (100,310)$               (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

1,663,789               134,446$                8.08                        (99,251)$                 (5.97)                       35,195$                  2.12                       
1,127,052               71,004$                  6.30                        (40,372)$                 (3.58)                       30,633$                  2.72                       
1,851,876               108,798$                5.88                        (52,359)$                 (2.83)                       56,438$                  3.05                       
3,349,591               89,803$                  2.68                        (100,055)$               (2.99)                       (10,253)$                 (0.31)                      

‐                          40,200$                  ‐                          (20,971)$                 ‐                          19,229$                  ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

9,917,542              
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 21,196,856             1,530,693$             7.22                        (484,344)$               (2.28)                       1,046,349$             4.94                       

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
21,196,856             1,015,417$             4.79                        1,015,417$             4.79                       
3,287,005               72,158$                  2.20                        (171,336)$               (5.21)                       (99,178)$                 (3.02)                      
6,328,519               274,790$                4.34                        (192,786)$               (3.05)                       82,003$                  1.30                       
1,663,789               187,963$                11.30                      (99,251)$                 (5.97)                       88,712$                  5.33                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
291,196$                (20,971)$                 270,225$               

11,279,314             826,106$                7.32                        (484,344)$               (4.29)                       341,762$                3.03                       
Net Portfolio  21,196,856             1,357,179$             6.40                       
Percent of Load Covered 53%

Distribution

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

Table 1.  District Cost Components

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA

Overhead

Transmission
Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost
District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource
Generation
Supplemental
Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

Generation ‐ Astoria

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

CAISO Load
Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs
District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Base Resource Pooling

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Resource Subtotal
RA & RECs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable
CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load
Base Resource, incl WWD BOR
Renewables
Lodi Energy Center

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

Supplemental

Generation ‐ Slate PV
Generation ‐ Slate BESS

29%

56%

15%

0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

4%
24%

18%

3%
38%

0%
‐4%

7%
9%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

 7.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

0.52 

5.79 

6.56 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan 4,598                      3,037                      2,259,797               4,581                      3,050                      2,269,158               6,853                      2,984                      2,220,069               0% 0% 0%
Feb 4,438                      3,238                      2,253,455               4,326                      2,749                      1,913,054               6,676                      3,724                      2,591,614               3% 18% 18%
Mar 4,870                      3,453                      2,568,952               4,789                      2,722                      2,024,969               8,590                      4,246                      3,154,442               2% 27% 27%
Apr 6,347                      3,814                      2,746,029               5,317                      2,457                      1,768,767               7,094                      4,195                      3,020,702               19% 55% 55%
May 7,084                      4,712                      3,505,477               5,908                      3,679                      2,737,015               8,449                      5,109                      3,800,822               20% 28% 28%
Jun 6,820                      5,373                      3,868,436               6,728                      4,706                      3,388,471               9,226                      5,742                      4,134,300               1% 14% 14%
Jul 6,833                      5,040                      3,749,966               7,428                      5,507                      4,097,510               8,331                      4,030                      2,998,270               ‐8% ‐8% ‐8%
Aug 7,413                      4,903                      3,647,541               9,230                      5,615                      4,177,498               7,759                      3,925                      2,920,074               ‐20% ‐13% ‐13%
Sep 7,197                      4,679                      3,368,765               7,437                      5,101                      3,672,623               7,866                      3,660                      2,635,511               ‐3% ‐8% ‐8%
Oct 6,258                      4,145                      3,084,041               6,784                      4,285                      3,188,179               7,748                      3,428                      2,550,242               ‐8% ‐3% ‐3%
Nov 6,746                      3,528                      2,540,353               5,628                      3,379                      2,433,104               6,806                      3,130                      2,257,004               20% 4% 4%
Dec 4,757                      3,210                      2,388,231               4,544                      2,946                      2,191,744               6,411                      3,220                      2,395,840               5% 9% 9%
2024 35,981,043             33,862,091             34,678,888             6%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh Sonoma 2024 Budget Summary ‐ Average

2024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 2022

 ‐

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

 3,500,000

 4,000,000

 4,500,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 1,000

 2,000

 3,000

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000

 7,000

 8,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
35,981,043             33,862,091             6%

149,755$                145,393$                3%
507,237$                713,660$                ‐29%

1,342,064$             1,204,621$             11%
143,924$                154,336$                ‐7%

1,752,642$             2,041,742$             ‐14%
12,267$                  9,863$                    24%

(181,371)$               (233,567)$               ‐22%
280,844$                210,677$                33%
134,670$                (89,544)$                 ‐250%

4,142,031$             4,157,183$             0%
2%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
35,981,043             33,862,091             6%

0.42                        0.43                        ‐3%
5.54                        6.12                        ‐9%
5.56                        5.73                        ‐3%
11.51                      12.28                      ‐6%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
36,665,829             1,752,642$             4.78                        ‐                          1,752,642$             4.78                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

6,011,129               129,889$                2.16                        (313,331)$               (5.21)                       (183,442)$               (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

2,944,979               185,534$                6.30                        (105,491)$               (3.58)                       80,043$                  2.72                       
6,913,977               406,196$                5.88                        (195,483)$               (2.83)                       210,713$                3.05                       
2,234,996               59,920$                  2.68                        (80,754)$                 (3.61)                       (20,834)$                 (0.93)                      

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

18,560,749            
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 36,665,829             2,534,181$             6.91                        (695,060)$               (1.90)                       1,839,121$             5.02                       

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
36,665,829             1,752,642$             4.78                        1,752,642$             4.78                       
6,011,129               131,960$                2.20                        (313,331)$               (5.21)                       (181,371)$               (3.02)                      
12,093,951             674,839$                5.58                        (381,728)$               (3.16)                       293,111$                2.42                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

134,670$                ‐$                        134,670$               
18,105,080             941,469$                5.20                        (695,060)$               (3.84)                       246,409$                1.36                       

Net Portfolio  36,665,829             1,999,051$             5.45                       
Percent of Load Covered 49%

Distribution

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

Table 1.  District Cost Components

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA

Overhead

Transmission
Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost
District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource
Generation
Supplemental
Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

Generation ‐ Astoria

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

CAISO Load
Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs
District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Base Resource Pooling

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Resource Subtotal
RA & RECs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable
CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load
Base Resource, incl WWD BOR
Renewables
Lodi Energy Center

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

Supplemental

Generation ‐ Slate PV
Generation ‐ Slate BESS

33%

67%

0% 0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

4% 12%

32%

3%

42%

0%
‐4%

7%

3%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

0.42 

5.54  5.56 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan 531                          288                          214,569                  162                          87                            64,740                    3,277                      621                          461,793                  229% 231% 231%
Feb 2,052                      953                          663,438                  854                          152                          105,745                  4,066                      2,573                      1,790,596               140% 527% 527%
Mar 3,678                      1,573                      1,170,583               365                          84                            62,799                    5,826                      4,572                      3,397,352               907% 1764% 1764%
Apr 5,350                      2,638                      1,899,276               983                          138                          99,594                    6,244                      5,484                      3,948,239               444% 1807% 1807%
May 4,331                      2,891                      2,150,867               3,509                      1,517                      1,128,503               5,410                      4,033                      3,000,249               23% 91% 91%
Jun 4,826                      3,218                      2,316,782               4,488                      2,888                      2,079,192               3,622                      2,190                      1,576,908               8% 11% 11%
Jul 4,353                      3,361                      2,500,950               4,509                      3,549                      2,640,263               2,292                      1,570                      1,167,849               ‐3% ‐5% ‐5%
Aug 4,716                      2,728                      2,029,958               4,938                      3,130                      2,328,924               2,595                      1,836                      1,366,344               ‐4% ‐13% ‐13%
Sep 3,161                      1,869                      1,345,813               3,335                      1,922                      1,384,102               2,698                      2,034                      1,464,597               ‐5% ‐3% ‐3%
Oct 2,425                      1,626                      1,209,869               3,171                      1,743                      1,296,561               3,797                      2,217                      1,649,299               ‐24% ‐7% ‐7%
Nov 2,289                      819                          589,854                  1,819                      1,108                      797,644                  723                          114                          82,295                    26% ‐26% ‐26%
Dec 1,063                      543                          403,931                  1,037                      577                          429,436                  1,551                      518                          385,758                  3% ‐6% ‐6%
2024 16,495,889             12,417,503             20,291,277             33%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh West Stan 2024 Budget Summary ‐ Average

2024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 2022

 ‐

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

 3,500,000

 4,000,000

 4,500,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 1,000

 2,000

 3,000

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
16,495,889             12,417,503             33%

88,121$                  77,889$                  13%
489,090$                469,348$                4%
255,828$                184,911$                38%
65,984$                  45,970$                  44%
742,544$                653,276$                14%

‐$                        ‐$                        0%
(341,350)$               (189,895)$               80%
115,259$                92,453$                  25%
58,996$                  91,159$                  ‐35%

1,474,473$             1,425,111$             3%
2%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
16,495,889             12,417,503             33%

0.53                        0.63                        ‐15%
4.92                        5.64                        ‐13%
3.49                        5.21                        ‐33%
8.94                        11.48                      ‐22%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
16,855,601             742,544$                4.41                        ‐                          742,544$                4.41                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

11,313,251             244,458$                2.16                        (589,706)$               (5.21)                       (345,248)$               (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

1,301,081               105,136$                8.08                        (77,614)$                 (5.97)                       27,522$                  2.12                       
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

4,464,187               119,685$                2.68                        (119,357)$               (2.67)                       328$                       0.01                       
‐                          80,400$                  ‐                          (41,942)$                 ‐                          38,458$                  ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

(222,918)                
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 16,855,601             1,292,223$             7.67                        (828,618)$               (4.92)                       463,605$                2.75                       

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
16,855,601             742,544$                4.41                        742,544$                4.41                       
11,313,251             248,355$                2.20                        (589,706)$               (5.21)                       (341,350)$               (3.02)                      
4,464,187               122,858$                2.75                        (119,357)$               (2.67)                       3,502$                    0.08                       
1,301,081               146,986$                11.30                      (77,614)$                 (5.97)                       69,373$                  5.33                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
143,323$                (41,942)$                 101,381$               

17,078,519             661,523$                3.87                        (828,618)$               (4.85)                       (167,095)$               (0.98)                      
Net Portfolio  16,855,601             575,449$                3.41                       
Percent of Load Covered 101%

Distribution

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

Table 1.  District Cost Components

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA

Overhead

Transmission
Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost
District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource
Generation
Supplemental
Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

Generation ‐ Astoria

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

CAISO Load
Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs
District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Base Resource Pooling

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Resource Subtotal
RA & RECs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable
CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load
Base Resource, incl WWD BOR
Renewables
Lodi Energy Center

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

Supplemental

Generation ‐ Slate PV
Generation ‐ Slate BESS 66%

26%

8%

0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

6%
33%

17%

4%50%

0%
‐23%

8%

4%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐
 0.50
 1.00

 1.50

 2.00

 2.50

 3.00

 3.50

 4.00

 4.50

 5.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

0.53 

4.92 

3.49 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan 9,519                      2,985                      2,221,000               4,860                      2,168                      1,613,235               26,375                    6,120                      4,553,578               96% 38% 38%
Feb 11,252                    5,717                      3,979,000               22,890                    10,974                    7,637,798               45,610                    18,608                    12,950,988             ‐51% ‐48% ‐48%
Mar 9,214                      3,766                      2,802,000               6,007                      3,235                      2,406,663               52,780                    23,130                    17,185,851             53% 16% 16%
Apr 13,362                    7,075                      5,094,000               6,739                      3,915                      2,818,912               58,140                    32,038                    23,067,225             98% 81% 81%
May 13,418                    10,657                    7,929,000               6,500                      4,004                      2,979,106               64,908                    42,188                    31,387,914             106% 166% 166%
Jun 13,813                    11,776                    8,479,000               7,444                      5,189                      3,735,990               65,220                    45,482                    32,747,278             86% 127% 127%
Jul 10,876                    9,245                      6,878,000               7,321                      5,569                      4,143,113               61,210                    42,693                    31,763,403             49% 66% 66%
Aug 9,475                      7,167                      5,332,000               4,752                      3,953                      2,941,046               60,232                    35,059                    26,084,259             99% 81% 81%
Sep 6,496                      4,246                      3,057,000               4,082                      3,326                      2,394,807               56,225                    26,821                    19,310,799             59% 28% 28%
Oct 4,368                      3,016                      2,244,000               3,032                      1,993                      1,483,154               41,986                    19,150                    14,247,346             44% 51% 51%
Nov 4,617                      1,954                      1,407,000               2,786                      1,844                      1,328,030               44,202                    8,143                      5,870,837               66% 6% 6%
Dec 2,764                      1,625                      1,209,000               5,277                      2,301                      1,711,740               19,246                    4,730                      3,518,789               ‐48% ‐29% ‐29%
2024 50,631,000             35,193,595             222,688,266           44%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh Westlands 2024 Budget Summary ‐ Average

2024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 2022

 ‐

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

 16,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
50,631,000             35,193,595             44%

814,685$                840,073$                ‐3%
3,671,150$             4,856,910$             ‐24%
1,931,818$             1,274,785$             52%
202,524$                147,744$                37%

2,261,154$             2,211,380$             2%
(225,570)$               (235,188)$               ‐4%

(3,282,234)$           (1,169,652)$           181%
1,100,139$             747,507$                47%
225,193$                132,324$                70%

6,698,860$             8,805,882$             ‐24%
4%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
50,631,000             35,193,595             44%

1.61                        2.39                        ‐33%
11.47                      17.84                      ‐36%
0.16                        4.79                        ‐97%
13.23                      25.02                      ‐47%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
52,778,205             2,261,154$             4.28                        ‐                          2,261,154$             4.28                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
4,994,000               ‐$                        ‐                          (243,837)$               (4.88)                       (243,837)$               (4.88)                      

108,781,885           2,350,568$             2.16                        (5,670,278)$           (5.21)                       (3,319,710)$           (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

7,527,104               608,242$                8.08                        (449,017)$               (5.97)                       159,225$                2.12                       
9,720,957               612,420$                6.30                        (348,211)$               (3.58)                       264,209$                2.72                       
7,407,774               435,207$                5.88                        (209,444)$               (2.83)                       225,762$                3.05                       
8,928,373               239,370$                2.68                        (188,383)$               (2.11)                       50,987$                  0.57                       

‐                          257,280$                ‐                          (134,214)$               ‐                          123,066$                ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

(94,581,888)          
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 52,778,205             6,764,241$             12.82                      (7,243,384)$           (13.72)                     (479,143)$               (0.91)                      

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
52,778,205             2,261,154$             4.28                        2,261,154$             4.28                       
113,775,885           2,406,311$             2.11                        (5,914,115)$           (5.20)                       (3,507,804)$           (3.08)                      
26,057,104             1,309,244$             5.02                        (746,039)$               (2.86)                       563,205$                2.16                       
7,527,104               850,319$                11.30                      (449,017)$               (5.97)                       401,303$                5.33                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
495,039$                (134,214)$               360,825$               

147,360,093           5,060,912$             3.43                        (7,243,384)$           (4.92)                       (2,182,472)$           (1.48)                      
Net Portfolio  52,778,205             78,683$                  0.15                       
Percent of Load Covered 279%

Distribution

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

Table 1.  District Cost Components

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA

Overhead

Transmission
Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost
District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource
Generation
Supplemental
Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

Generation ‐ Astoria

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

CAISO Load
Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs
District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Base Resource Pooling

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Resource Subtotal
RA & RECs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable
CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load
Base Resource, incl WWD BOR
Renewables
Lodi Energy Center

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

Supplemental

Generation ‐ Slate PV
Generation ‐ Slate BESS

77%

18%
5%

0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

12%

55%

29%

3%34%

‐3%

‐49%

16%

3%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐

 2.00

 4.00

 6.00

 8.00

 10.00

 12.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

1.61 

11.47 

0.16 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh Peak kW Ave kW Load kWh
Jan 2,380                      705                          524,309                  1,400                      548                          407,589                  1,830                      402                          298,738                  70% 29% 29%
Feb 1,163                      661                          459,993                  2,465                      907                          631,504                  1,489                      612                          425,776                  ‐53% ‐27% ‐27%
Mar 1,277                      549                          408,476                  1,946                      562                          418,030                  1,571                      660                          490,312                  ‐34% ‐2% ‐2%
Apr 2,960                      617                          444,249                  1,622                      604                          434,659                  1,576                      790                          568,573                  82% 2% 2%
May 2,346                      701                          521,717                  1,808                      694                          516,125                  1,464                      1,076                      800,222                  30% 1% 1%
Jun 2,465                      713                          513,189                  1,772                      599                          431,576                  1,533                      1,141                      821,756                  39% 19% 19%
Jul 2,083                      796                          592,071                  1,761                      606                          451,061                  2,025                      1,268                      943,533                  18% 31% 31%
Aug 2,526                      843                          627,353                  1,068                      592                          440,175                  2,057                      1,450                      1,078,852               136% 43% 43%
Sep 1,541                      923                          664,819                  1,689                      1,169                      841,915                  2,173                      1,305                      939,942                  ‐9% ‐21% ‐21%
Oct 1,323                      899                          668,989                  2,332                      1,081                      804,011                  2,013                      1,155                      859,055                  ‐43% ‐17% ‐17%
Nov 2,348                      856                          616,402                  3,206                      1,028                      740,190                  1,562                      997                          718,565                  ‐27% ‐17% ‐17%
Dec 903                          590                          438,763                  1,893                      568                          422,370                  1,502                      925                          688,314                  ‐52% 4% 4%
2024 6,480,330               6,539,204               8,633,638               ‐1%

Energy Summary, Metered kWh Zone 7 2024 Budget Summary ‐ Average

2024 Budget 2023 Actual 2022 Actual Year‐Over‐Year Comparison, 2023 v 2022

 ‐

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kWh
2024 Budget & 2022‐2023 Actual Energy Usage (kWh)

2024
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

 ‐

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

kW 2024 Budget Average & Peak (kW)

Ave
kW

Peak
kW



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
6,480,330               6,539,204               ‐1%

71,253$                  66,255$                  8%
399,264$                624,987$                ‐36%
139,361$                119,654$                16%
25,921$                  30,013$                  ‐14%
326,173$                384,497$                ‐15%

‐$                        ‐$                        0%
(14,681)$                 (30,586)$                 ‐52%
17,787$                  13,289$                  34%
45,384$                  10,145$                  347%

1,010,463$             1,218,253$             ‐17%
2%  Loss Adjustment

2024 Budget 2023 Actual Compare
6,480,330               6,539,204               ‐1%

1.10                        1.01                        9%
8.71                        11.85                      ‐26%
5.78                        5.77                        0%
15.59                      18.63                      ‐16%

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
6,621,420               326,173$                4.93                        ‐                          326,173$                4.93                       

‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

486,555                  10,514$                  2.16                        (25,362)$                 (5.21)                       (14,848)$                 (3.05)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

422,318                  26,606$                  6.30                        (15,128)$                 (3.58)                       11,478$                  2.72                       
493,797                  29,011$                  5.88                        (13,961)$                 (2.83)                       15,049$                  3.05                       

1,114,595               29,882$                  2.68                        (40,272)$                 (3.61)                       (10,390)$                 (0.93)                      
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

4,104,154              
Total Loss Adjusted kWh 6,621,420               422,186$                6.38                        (94,723)$                 (1.43)                       327,462$                4.95                       

Energy kWh Costs Cents/kWh Resource Credits Cents/kWh Net Cost/Credit Cents/kWh
6,621,420               326,173$                4.93                        326,173$                4.93                       
486,555                  10,681$                  2.20                        (25,362)$                 (5.21)                       (14,681)$                 (3.02)                      

2,030,710               87,148$                  4.29                        (69,361)$                 (3.42)                       17,787$                  0.88                       
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         
‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                          ‐$                        ‐                         

45,384$                  ‐$                        45,384$                 
2,517,266               143,213$                5.69                        (94,723)$                 (3.76)                       48,490$                  1.93                       

Net Portfolio  6,621,420               374,663$                5.66                       
Percent of Load Covered 38%

Distribution

2024 Budget & 2023 Actual Annual Cost Summary

Table 1.  District Cost Components

Total Metered kWh
Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA

Overhead

Transmission
Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost
District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource
Generation
Supplemental
Total Costs

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

Total Metered kWh

Generation ‐ Astoria

Delivery
Energy
Total Costs

2024 Annual Resource Portfolio

CAISO Load
Distirct Specific ‐ Warm Springs
District Specific ‐ BOR Payback
Base Resource 

Generation ‐ LEC
Base Resource Pooling

Table 3.  Load & Portfolio Resources (Energy Cost Only)

Resource Subtotal
RA & RECs

Generation ‐ Whitney

Supplemental ‐ Fixed
Supplemental ‐ Variable
CAISO Real‐time Imbalance

CAISO Load
Base Resource, incl WWD BOR
Renewables
Lodi Energy Center

Table 4.  Resource Summary (Total Cost with Overheads)

Supplemental

Generation ‐ Slate PV
Generation ‐ Slate BESS

19%

81%

0% 0%

Energy Resources ‐ kWh

Base Resource, incl WWD BOR

Renewables

Lodi Energy Center

Supplemental

7%

40%

14%

3%

32%

0%

‐1%
2%

4%

Budget District Cost Components

Overhead ‐ JPA & ASA Distribution
Transmission Grid Mgmt & Misc
CAISO Load Cost District‐Specific Projects
Base Resource Generation
Supplemental

 ‐

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

 7.00

 8.00

 9.00

Table 2.  Cents per kWh

1.10 

8.71 

5.78 

Overhead, Delivery, & Energy Rates
Cents per Metered kWh

Overhead Delivery Energy



 
 
 

Power & Water Resources Pooling 
Authority 
 

Regular Agenda • Item 5.C 
 
 

 
1. Resolution 23-10-13 Rate Review and Adjustment. 
 

 
 

 

 

    
      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Power & Water Resources Pooling Authority 
Resolution 23-10-13 

 
 

RATE REVIEW AND REVISED PRO FORMA RATE SCHEDULE 
 

WHEREAS, the Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority (“PWRPA”) provides 
aggregated electric services to electric accounts designated by Project Participants that are 
signatories to the Aggregation Services Agreement (“ASA”); and 
 

WHEREAS, ASA Section 8.1 requires PWRPA to recover costs through rates and 
charges applicable to Project Participants; and 

 
WHEREAS, ASA Section 8.3 allows the Board, based on principles in Exhibit E to the 

ASA, to adjust rates as may be required to collect additional operating funds to address 
shortfalls or to return amounts of any over-collection that may occur due to various factors, 
including but not limited to seasonal adjustments; and  

 
WHEREAS, Section III A of Exhibit E to the ASA permits Inter-Period adjustments of the 

pro forma power rates by the Board as may be reasonably required to address shortfalls or 
over-collections that may occur due to various factors affecting the reserve fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, continuing to collect using the current Pro Forma rates will result in 

substantial over-collections. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board hereby: 
 

1. To be determined. 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Pooling Authority Board of Directors this 4th day of 

October 2023, by the following vote on roll call: 
 
 

AYES 

Arvin-Edison WSD, Banta Carbona ID, Byron Bethany ID, Cawelo Water District, 
Glenn-Colusa ID, James ID, Lower Tule River ID, Princeton/Provident ID, RD 
108, Santa Clara Valley WD, Sonoma County Water Agency, West Stanislaus 
ID, Westlands Water District, Zone 7 Water Agency (100.0% Voting Shares) 

NOES 
 
None 
 

ABSENT None 

 
 
 
_________________________________     _________________________________ 
David Weisenberger         Attest by: Bruce McLaughlin 
Chairman          Secretary 

 
 

 
 



 
 
 

Power & Water Resources Pooling 
Authority 
 

Regular Agenda • Item 6.A 
 
 

 
1. General Manager’s Comments. 

 
 

 

 

    
      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority 
October 4, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item 6.A  

 
 
Action Required  

Provide input for scheduling 2024 task teams & training sessions. 

Discussion 

In September 2017, PWRPA held a two-day strategic planning session in Sonoma comprising the 
following: 
 

• Planning sessions 1-3: Staff facilitated a discussion on the continuously transforming 
status of California legislation, electricity-related regulations, electric industry disruptive 
technologies, PWRPA’s contract timelines, and JPA governance matters. The final 
session covered external power-related matters including PWRPA’s procurement 
policies, the proliferation of distributed generation and energy storage. 

 
• Planning session 4: Staff facilitated a discussion on PWRPA’s internal reconciliation and 

pooling policies, and how these are impacted by PWRPA’s power procurement 
strategies.   

 
• Planning sessions 5-7: Staff facilitated a discussion on PWRPA’s information technology 

systems and their interrelation to the power procurement, reconciliation and allocation 
policies. The second session covered the ranges of staff skill sets and staffing options to 
implement different transformational models. The final session included a wrap-up, 
identified the strategic issues for further consideration and developed a task team 
structure to consider: governance models; vision; operations; IT systems; and R&D. 

 
To continue the work begun at the planning session, the Board established 3 task teams; 
Operations, Governance and RD&D. In November 2017, the Board adopted the following vision 
statement: To provide cost-effective and reliable energy services to its customers consistent 
with good business practices, safety, and efficiency. Significant changes were made during the 
next few years including replacing SAMBA, improving operational planning and scheduling,  
selecting a preferred solar developer, streamlining administrative processes and pursuing more 
cost-effective procurement opportunities. And, then in September 2019 . . . PG&E overturned 
the card table with its WDT3 filing.  
 
The PG&E WDT3 filing was flawed from the onset and resulting from PWRPA’s deep dive into 
the tariff model, it was discovered that a PG&E error was double charging all customers. Even 
after this was fixed, the WDT3 still presented the single greatest rate increase in PWRPA’s 
history. Combined with the ever-increasing CAISO TAC, runaway RA obligations, inflation and 
COVID-related impacts on manufactured goods, PWRPA’s cost-effectiveness has taken a hit.  
 
 



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority 
October 4, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item 6.A  

 
I suggest that it’s time to refresh our task team-training activities as follows:  
 

1. Governance – Training sessions to refresh memories or inform new directors, e.g., 
PWRPA formation documents, “staff” team structure, key resolutions & Board policies, 
compliance obligations, service agreements, etc. 
 

2. Financial – A collaborative deep-dive into developing strategies to reduce costs and/or 
stabilize rates. 
 

3. Technical - Identifying new methods and/or technologies for serving load (onsite or 
remotely sited).  

 
I envision holding 2 sessions per month on a regularly scheduled day and time. The 
participation is voluntary; however, I will prepare a syllabus well advance so that Directors (or 
district staff) may decide whether they will attend. This is particularly true for the Governance 
training sessions. The other two groups will be largely customized to fit the needs of the 
participating Districts. 
 
   
 



 
 
 

Power & Water Resources Pooling 
Authority 
 

Regular Agenda • Item 6.B 
 
 

 
1. Operations Manager’s Report. 

 
 

 

 

    
      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority 
September 2023 Update 
Operations Manager Report 

 

 1 

Possible Action  
n/a 

Operations Staff Overview 

1. October planned activity 
a) Slate: data comms with MCG, invoice resolution, deemed energy protocol 
b) LTRID Hydro: start generating, REC purchases 
c) 2024 Budget prep 
d) WDT 2024 rate case – validation of demands and SA30 adjustment 

2. September recap  
a) DSGS enrollment 
b) LTRID Hydro onboarding 
c) 2024 Board packet work 
d) Various coordination w/ Solar developers on Districts request 
e) Rate update, RPS compliance period 4 planning 

Operations Report: 

1. Pre-Reconciliation 
a) Actual data for January – partial Sept, Sept - December estimates. 
b) BR estimates as of Sept 1 WAPA forecast makes the rate $30/MWH (down from $54 

in the Dry budget).  
c) Changes include: REC costs for PCC3 (half PCC1 needs), added a change in reserve 

estimate, and reordered the tables for BBID naming convention. 
 

Table 1: 2023 Pre-Reconciliation 
 

 
 

2. August operations 
a) Energy is 35% under budget for the month, 37% for the year 



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority 
September 2023 Update 
Operations Manager Report 

 

 2 

b) Load averaged 50 MW (10 MW lower than last month) 
c) Average schedule deviation of 5 MW for an estimated cost of 41,200.  

3. Pricing 
a) Average monthly prices:  

 
Table 2: Average monthly cost and ISO revenue rates 

 

 

Generator Reports 
 

1. Astoria Solar 
a) Generation 
o 3,358 MWh, 45% capacity  
o Net credit $125,600 or $37 /MWh  

 
2. Whitney Point Solar  

a) Generation 
o 3,273 MWh, 41% capacity factor  
a. Net credit $105,500, or $30 /MWh  

 
3. Slate Solar + Battery 

a) Generation 
o 7,934 MWh, 41% capacity factor 
o Net value $569,300, or $80 /MWh 

b) Staff work 
o ACES & MCG to setup data flows: working through data translations 
o Deemed Energy issues still outstanding 

 
4. Lodi Energy Center 

o Operations:  
 1,606 MWh, or 27% capacity factor due to economics 
 81% RA availability  

 
 

Cost Revenue
BR 29.42$         (74.95)$           

Displacement 29.42$         (71.50)$           
WWD BOR -$              (70.35)$           

Whitney Point 58.75$         (41.33)$           
Astoria 63.00$         (65.31)$           

Slate 26.81$         (61.96)$           
*Lodi 64.41$         (83.70)$           

Market



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority 
September 2023 Update 
Operations Manager Report 

 

 3 

Power Planning & Regulatory 
 

1. Power Net Short 
a) WAPA’s current forecast is Sept 1, 2023. 
b) Staff will start focusing on 2024 net short position. 

2. BR output:  
a. Covers 66% of load for August and 52% of September so far. 

 

 
 
 

 
 

3. Resource Adequacy 
a. 2023: we had one CAISO procurement and PWRPA share was $40,000 
b. 2024: will be discussed under 2024 agenda item 

4. Renewable Energy Credits 
a. PWRPA’s long Districts have agreed to transfer some of their excess to short 

Districts at a price of $36.50/REC. This represents the average of the August 
PCC1 and PCC2 spot market prices. PWRPA would have otherwise procured at 
around $43/REC, that is a 15% savings. The market has since risen to $70/REC. 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1-
Au

g

2-
Au

g

3-
Au

g

4-
Au

g

5-
Au

g

6-
Au

g

7-
Au

g

8-
Au

g

9-
Au

g

10
-A

ug

11
-A

ug

12
-A

ug

13
-A

ug

14
-A

ug

15
-A

ug

16
-A

ug

17
-A

ug

18
-A

ug

19
-A

ug

20
-A

ug

21
-A

ug

22
-A

ug

23
-A

ug

24
-A

ug

25
-A

ug

26
-A

ug

27
-A

ug

28
-A

ug

29
-A

ug

30
-A

ug

31
-A

ug

M
W

h

August Load and BR
BR Allocation… Prior Year BR Allocation Load Schedule DLF-Adjusted Demand

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1-
Se

p

2-
Se

p

3-
Se

p

4-
Se

p

5-
Se

p

6-
Se

p

7-
Se

p

8-
Se

p

9-
Se

p

10
-S

ep

11
-S

ep

12
-S

ep

13
-S

ep

14
-S

ep

15
-S

ep

16
-S

ep

17
-S

ep

18
-S

ep

19
-S

ep

20
-S

ep

21
-S

ep

22
-S

ep

23
-S

ep

24
-S

ep

25
-S

ep

26
-S

ep

27
-S

ep

28
-S

ep

29
-S

ep

30
-S

ep

M
W

h

September Load and BR
BR Allocation… Prior Year BR Allocation Load Schedule DLF-Adjusted Demand



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority 
September 2023 Update 
Operations Manager Report 

 

 4 

b. Staff will transfer 50% now to be included in 2023 costs and the other have in 
2024. These numbers are included in the 2023 Pre-Reconciliation and the 2024 
Budget. 

c. PWRPA staff continues to work with Districts on their on-site project 
developments; BCID, BBID, RD108, SCWA, WWD. 

d. Table below is the current projection of PCC1/2 status by Compliance Period, no 
banking assumed. Negative numbers are folks that are long. 
 

Table 3: REC PCC1/2 Net Short / (Long) 
 

 

District CP4: 2021-
2024

CP5: 2025-
2027

CP6: 2028-
2030

*CP7: 2030-
2033

Annaul Net 
Short/(Long) 

2030+

Avg Solar MW 
to cure 

deficiency
AEWSD (21,188)       20,103        36,019        44,758           14,919              5.3                     
BCID 4,539          (17,735)       (13,788)       (12,590)         (4,197)               (1.5)                    
BBID 3,518          1,687          3,919          4,345             1,448                0.5                     
CWD/LTRID (10,590)       (9,099)         (11,249)       (9,901)           (3,300)               (1.2)                    
GCID 1,265          1,386          3,362          4,096             1,365                0.5                     
JID (476)            (91)              1,661          1,896             632                    0.2                     
PPCGID 56                34                (79)              118                39                      0.0                     
RD 108 (911)            (1,069)         (1,465)         (1,313)           (438)                  (0.2)                    
SCVWD 1,870          3,680          6,242          7,759             2,586                0.9                     
SCWA (32,292)       (2,597)         2,175          4,702             1,567                0.6                     
WSID 2,266          3,723          8,258          9,460             3,153                1.1                     
WWD (10,813)       26,810        69,833        78,407           26,136              9.3                     
Z7 250             2,225          3,825          4,343             1,448                0.5                     
Total (62,506)      29,056        108,712      136,081        45,360              16.2                   
Average Annual (15,626)       9,685          36,237        45,360           15,120              
Solar Need 3.5              12.9            16.2               5.4                     
*CP7: represents all future CPs at the 60% RPS target
*each CP stands on its own (does not assume carryover of excess)



 
 
 

Power & Water Resources Pooling 
Authority 
 

Regular Agenda • Item 6.C 
 
 

 
1. Resolution 23-10-14 2022 Power Content Label. 

 
 

 

 

    
      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



   
 

   
 

 
Power & Water Resources Pooling Authority 

Resolution 23-10-14 
 

POWER CONTENT LABEL ATTESTATION 
 
 

WHEREAS, California Code of Regs., title 20, Section 1394, requires that each retail 
supplier shall provide a separate annual Power Source Disclosure (PSD) report to the Energy 
Commission containing the power source information for each electricity portfolio offered the 
previous calendar year; and   

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 23-06-06, the Board of Directors approved PSDs 

for two separate electricity portfolios supplied to its retail customers in 2022, the Standard 
Water Portfolio and the Zero Carbon Water Portfolio; and  

 
WHEREAS, the information contained in the PSD report was used to prepare PWRPA’s 

annual Power Content Label (PCL), which discloses the fuel mix of PWRPA’s retail electricity 
sales during the prior calendar year, as well as the fuel mix of the state as a whole, and which 
is provided to all PWRPA’s customers; and 

 
WHEREAS, California Code of Regs., title 20, Sections 1394.2(a)(2), allows the Board of 

Directors to attest to the veracity of each PSD report and PCL for the previous year; and 
 
WHEREAS, the PSD reports for both electricity portfolios were completed by PWRPA 

staff and confirmed with PWRPA’s account in the Western Renewable Energy Generation 
Information System (WREGIS), where PWRPA tracks its eligible renewable and carbon-free 
energy; and   

 
WHEREAS, in June 2023, PWRPA staff submitted the 2022 Annual PSD reports for 

both electricity portfolios to the Energy Commission in accordance with the applicable 
regulations.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board hereby: 
 

1. Approves the submission and attests to the veracity of the 2022 Annual Power Source 
Disclosure Reports for the Standard Water Portfolio and Zero Carbon Water Portfolio, 
as approved in Resolution 23-06-06. 
 

2. Approves the submission and attests to the veracity of the 2022 Power Content Label 
for the Standard Water Portfolio and Zero Carbon Water Portfolio, as shown in 
Attachment A. 

 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 



Resolution 23-10-14 
 
 
 

 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Pooling Authority Board of Directors this 4th day of 
October 2023, by the following vote on roll call: 

 
 

AYES 

Arvin-Edison WSD, Banta Carbona ID, Byron Bethany ID, Cawelo Water District, 
Glenn-Colusa ID, James ID, Lower Tule River ID, Princeton/Provident ID, RD 
108, Santa Clara Valley WD, Sonoma County Water Agency, The West Side ID, 
West Stanislaus ID, Westlands Water District, Zone 7 Water Agency (100.0% 
Voting Shares) 

NOES  

ABSENT  

 
 
 
 

_________________________________                 _________________________________ 
David Weisenberger         Attest by: Bruce McLaughlin 
Chairman          Secretary 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
to 

RESOLUTION 23-10-14 
 
 
 

 



2022 POWER CONTENT LABEL
Power & Water Resources Pooling Authority

www.pwrpa.org/power-content-label/
Greenhouse Gas Emissions Intensity 

(lbs CO2e/MWh) Energy Resources
Electricity 
Portfolio 1 

Name

Electricity 
Portfolio 2 

Name

2022 CA 
Power Mix

 Eligible Renewable1 25.8% 36.1% 35.8%
         Biomass & Biowaste 0.0% 0.0% 2.1%

660 0 422          Geothermal 0.0% 0.0% 4.7%
         Eligible Hydroelectric 1.1% 0.3% 1.1%
         Solar 24.7% 35.8% 17.0%
         Wind 0.0% 0.0% 10.8%
 Coal 0.0% 0.0% 2.1%
 Large Hydroelectric 3.7% 63.9% 9.2%
 Natural Gas 5.5% 0.0% 36.4%
 Nuclear 0.0% 0.0% 9.2%
 Other 0.0% 0.0% 0.1%
 Unspecified Power2 65.1% 0.0% 7.1%
 TOTAL 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Percentage of Retail Sales Covered by Retired Unbundled RECs3: 1% 0%
1The eligible renewable percentage above does not reflect RPS compliance, which is determined using a different methodology.
2Unspecified power is electricity that has been purchased through open market transactions and is not traceable to a specific 

generation source.
3Renewable energy credits (RECs) are tracking instruments issued for renewable generation. Unbundled renewable energy credits 

(RECs) represent renewable generation that was not delivered to serve retail sales. Unbundled RECs are not reflected in the power mix 
or GHG emissions intensities above.

For specific information about this electricity 
portfolio, contact:

Power & Water Resources Pooling Authority                               
(916) 531-5566

For general information about the Power Content 
Label, visit:

https://www.energy.ca.gov/programs-and-topics/programs/power-
source-disclosure-program

Electricity Portfolio 2 
Name

Electricity Portfolio 1 
Name

2022 CA Utility Average

0

200

400

600

800

1000
Electricity Portfolio 1
Name

Electricity Portfolio 2
Name

2022 CA Utility
Average



 
 
 

Power & Water Resources Pooling 
Authority 
 

Regular Agenda • Item 6.D 
 
 

 
1. Resolution 23-10-15 Meeting Dates for 2024. 

 
 

 

 

    
      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority 
October 4, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item 6.D  

 
 
Action Required  

Adopt Resolution 23-10-15 to set the meeting dates for 2024. 

Discussion 

In 2024, we propose to continue holding Regular Board meetings on the first Wednesday of 
every other month (February, April, June, August, October, December). The only known conflict 
with this schedule is the ACWA Conference scheduled for December 3- 5. Therefore, the PWRPA 
2024 schedule shown below proposes either Monday, December 2 or Monday, December 9.   
 
 

Proposed Date Typical recurring issues 

Wednesday, February 7  

Wednesday, April 3 Exhibit B & C for Voting Shares, rate review 

Wednesday, June 5 Annual Audit, Power Source Disclosure, rate review 

Wednesday, August 7 Reconciliation, WMP update, rate review 

Wednesday, October 2 Budget look, Meeting Dates, Power Content Label, rate review 

Monday, December 2 or 9 Budget & Pro Forma Rates, Officers, Consultant contracts 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Power & Water Resources Pooling Authority 
Resolution 23-10-15

SETTING THE REGULAR MEETING DATES FOR 2024 

WHEREAS, the Power and Water Resources Pooling Authority (“PWRPA”) was created 
by a Joint Powers Agreement (“JPA”) to, among other things, acquire, construct, maintain, 
operate, and finance water and energy related projects; and 

WHEREAS, JPA Section 3.10.1 provides that the Board may provide for the holding of 
regular meetings at intervals more frequently than annually; and 

WHEREAS, JPA Section 3.10.1 requires that the date, hour, and place of each regular 
meeting shall be fixed by an action of the Board. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board hereby: 

1. Approves the 2024 Regular Meeting Schedule, appended hereto as Attachment A.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Pooling Authority Board of Directors this 4th day of 
October, 2023, by the following vote on roll call: 

AYES 

Arvin-Edison WSD, Banta Carbona ID, Byron Bethany ID, Cawelo Water District, 
Glenn-Colusa ID, James ID, Lower Tule River ID, Princeton/Provident ID, Santa 
Clara Valley WD, Sonoma County Water Agency, West Stanislaus ID, 
Westlands Water District, Zone 7 WA (100% voting shares) 

NOES 

ABSENT 

_________________________________   _________________________________ 
David Weisenberger      Attest by: Bruce McLaughlin 
Chairman     Secretary 



 

 

Attachment A to Resolution 23-10-15 
 
 

Time and Place of Regular Meetings in 2024 
 
 
The Regular Board meetings shall occur at 9:00 AM on the first Wednesday of the 
following months. 
 

(a) February 7 

(b) April 3 

(c) June 5 

(d) August 7 

(e) October 2 

(f) December 2 (Monday), December 9 (Monday)  
 
Unless otherwise specially noticed, the Regular Board meetings shall be held at the 
Banta-Carbona Irrigation District headquarters, 3514 W. Lehman Road, Tracy, CA 
95304.  

 
 


	1_Pwrpa Cover
	2_2310 PWRPA RM Agenda_v3
	NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING AND AGENDA

	4_A_1_Consent Separator
	4_A_2_Draft Minutes for 230802 mtg
	REGULAR MEETING MINUTES AUGUST 2, 2023

	4_B_P3 Reimbursement Request Packet 9-22-23 Signed
	01 - Cover Letter P3
	02 - SCVWD P-3 Disbursment Request Form
	03 - P3 Remaining Funds 7-31-23
	04 - SFPUC Intertie ASD Replacement Project Reimbursement Request Summary
	05 - Telstar Instruments Invoice No. 104272

	4_C_C&T Reimbursement Request Packet 9-22-23 signed
	01 - C&T Request - Utility Solar - DRAFT
	02 - C&T Allowance Revenue 7-31-23
	03 - 2022 Reconciliation Summary

	5_A_1_Treasurers Report_Separator
	5_A_2_BOD 10.2023
	5_B_1_Budget Summaries_Separator
	5_B_2024 Budget_District Summaries - Avg Hydro
	5_C_1_R23-10-13 _Separator_Rates
	5_C_3_R23-10-13 Rate Review
	6_A_1_GM Sep
	6_A_2_Task Teams
	6_B_1_Ops Sep
	6_B_2_Oct23 Ops Memo
	6_C_1_R23-10-14_Separator_PCL 2022
	6_C_2_R23-10-14 PCL for 2022
	Power & Water Resources Pooling Authority
	Resolution 23-10-14
	POWER CONTENT LABEL ATTESTATION

	6_D_1_R23-10-15_Separator_Mtg Dates
	6_D_2_Meeting Dates memo
	6_D_3_R23-10-15 Meeting Dates for 2024



